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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifth Anhual General Meeting of the
Members of FTC india Financial Services Ltd will be held on 24" dav of
September, 2011 at 1130 AM at Dr. Sarvepatli Radhakrishnan Auditorium
at Kendriya Vidyalaya No. 2, APS. Cotony (Delhi-Gurgaon Road), Delh;
Cantt, New Delhi - 110010 to transact the following business: -

DRDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2077,
Profit and Loss Account {including all the documents attached to it) foar
the year ended on thatdate and the Repart of the Board of Directars and
Auditors thereon.

To re-appoint Mrs. Rama Murali, who retire by rotativi and s eligible
for re-appuintment.

To consider and if thought fit, tu pass with or without madification{s),
the following resclution for appointment of Statutory Auditors fur the
financial year 2011-12 as Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant te the provisions of the Compaaies Act,
1956, M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants {ICAl
Registration no. 015125N), be and is hereby re- appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company far the linaneial year 201112, to
hold the office from conclusion of 5th Annual General Meeting of the
Company until the conclusion of 6th Annual General Meeling of the
Company on the terms and conditions as decided b the Board or any
Committee hereof from time to time.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Corn pany Secretary or any other officer
of the company be and is hereby authorised to inform M/ s Deloitte
Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants about their re-appointment as
statutory auditors of the company for the financial yuar 2011-12.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

n

To appoint Mr. Surinder Singh Kohli as Director, who was appointed
as Additional Director in pursuant of provision 260 of Companies Act,
1956, and will hold the office upto ensuing AGM.

Tir consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without inadification(s),
the fullowing resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956,
Mr. Surinder Singh Kohli, be and is hereby appainted as a Director of
the Company and shall be liable to retire by cotation.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any Director or Company Secretary of
the Company be and is hereby autharised to do all such acts including
filing of necessary intimation with ROC for above purpase,”

Amendment in Article of Assoeiation of the Campany to reraove the
m-operative of Article of Association.

To consider and if thought {it, to pass with or without nudification(s),
the following resodution as Speeial Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 31 of the Comypanies Act, 1956
and other applicable provisions of the law, if any, the existing Articles
af Assaciativn be and are hereby amended and adopted by deleting
the Article 112 to 127, as per the detail montioned in the explantory
staterment.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, Director and/or Company Secretary
of the Company be and is hereby authorized to sign and fife all the
necessary forms and other necessary documents as may be required by
the statutory authorities including the Registrar of Companies, New
Dethi and Harvana and to do such acts, deeds and thigs that may be
required forthe purpose of alteration of the Articles of Assuciabion of
the Cumpaoy that may be sugpested by the Registrar of Companivs or
such other statutory authorities m the implementation of the aforesaid

Mlace: New Dielhi

resolutions and to authorize sueh person or persons to give effect to
the above resolutivns and to submit all documents Lo the concerned
autharities with regard to the same *

By Order of the Board of DHrectors,

For PFC India Financial Services Limited

(Vishal Goyal)
Company Secretary

Date: 29tk Ju]y, 2011

Naotes:

1.

.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING (THE'MEETING'} IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A
FROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELE
AND THE PROXY NEED NDT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY,
A PROXY FORM IS ENCLOSED. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A
PRDXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING,

Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives
to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified
copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative to attend
and vote an their behalf at the Meeting.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act,
1956 in respect of Special Business set out in the natice is enclosed.

As required by elause 49 of the Listing Agreement, relevant details
of Mrs. Rama Murali, Director retiring by rotation and seeking re-
appointment under Hem no. 2 and appoitrent of Mr. Surinder Singh
Kohli as Dircetor under item no. 4 aforesaid are annexed. Mr. P,
Abraham, Director whose office was liable to retire by rotation in this
AGM has shown his unwillingness for reappointment.

Nome of the Directors of the Company is in anvways related to each
other.

The tegister of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will
remain clesed frum 17 1o 28% September, 2011 (both days inclusive),

Members  are requested to send all correspondance concerning,
registration of transfers, transmissions, subdivision, consolidation of

- shares or any ather shares relaled matter and for change in adddress

and hank aceount, to Company's Registrar,

Members halding shares in moltiple folios in physical mode are
requested to apply for conselidation to the Company or Registrar &
Tranafer Agent alongwith relevant share certificates.

Members desirous of making a nomination in respect of their
sharchalding in the company, as permutted under Section 1094 of the

Regls
I.'l]“rﬁ-’sln casetblY in dematerilised form, the nomination has
- 1
d withthe respective depository participant.
% ;e
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il shares o physical torm are regquested o notify 13. The entire Annual Repert is also available at the Company’s website

oz i therr addresses to the Bepistee oo D Transter www. ptofinancial.com,
respuen tve depusitury Darhicipants, aoease of shares .
14, Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their

copy of annual report to the meeting.
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As per the circular no. 18/2011 on Green Initiative, The company will
send Annual Report along with other documents through email to all
tmembers, whose have registered theer email address with deposilory
o physical hard copies will be despatched to others. In case any
member desire tn get hardcopy of annual report, they can write to
company at registered office address or email at complianceotticer@
plefinancialoon: .
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Important Communication to Members

ate Affarrs (MUAY has baken o “Creen smtiative i the Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by the
sl virs lars stating that service of nntice/ dacuments including annual report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support
of the Goternment in full measure, members whie have nol registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested tn register their
respuct of electronic huldings with the Depusttory through their respeclive Depository Participants. Members who hold shares m
yuested 10 provide detaits of & mal addresses 1o Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Cotnpany,




Anncxure to the Notice

EXPLANATDRY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

item no. 4

Mr. Surinder Singh Kohli holds Bachelor's degree in Science {Mechanical
Engineering) from Bararas Hindu University and a diploma in Industrial
Finanre from Indian Institute of Bankers, Prior to joining our Company he
was the Chairman and Managing Director of India Infrastructure Finance
Crinpary Limited, Punjab National Bank, Small Industries Development
Bank of India and Punjab and Sind Bark respectively. He was also the
chairman of the India Banks Association for fwo terms. There is a need for
appointment of expert professionals, by enhance the growih and expansion
af the company. The Board in its meeting held on 13th December, 2B10,
appointed Mr. Kohli as Additional Directur. Theretyre it is propesed i
appaint Mr. Surinder Singh Kohli, as a member of Board.

No other Direclor is interested in appuintinent of Mr. Surinder Singh Kohti
excepting him. The Board recommends the resolution for approval of the
sharcholders.

Tterm miz 5

The Shareholders in its extraordinary gereral meeting held on 13th December
2010 had made required changes in Articles of Association of PFS {AOA) at
the time of 10O, to make it in line with SEB! requirements, restricted clauses

in ADA were suspended / marked for deletion by inserting frllowing Article
12Bin ADA.

128 Each of the Articles 112 to 127 shali automatically terminate and cease to
be a part uf these articles with effect from the date of filing of the Prospectus

with the Registrar of Companies in relation to the TPO of the equity shares
of the Company.

Article T12 to 127 were derived from the shareholders agreement with G
Strategic Investment Limited, Macquarie India Holdings Limited and PTC
India Limited which has already terminated on completion of iPO, therefore,
the provisions of same need to be remoyed from the ADA of the Company.

As the Company had filed Prospectus with ROC and become a listed
company, therefore, there Articles are inuperative as on date. The Board of
Directors in its meeting held op 25th May 2011 has recommended removing
riause 112 to 128 from the Articles of Assotiation subject to approval from
Shareholders in ensuing Armual General Meeting. The details of these
Articles are given belrw

No other Director is interested in amendment in Articles of Assogiation of
the eumpany. The Board recummends the resolution for approval nf the
sharcholdors,

PROPOSED CLAUSES TO BE REMDVED
Shareholders Agreement

112, Articles 112 to 128 {"Sharcholders  Agreement Articles”) which
inorporate the relevant provistons of the Sharchelders Agrecment
executed on December 28, 2007 amungst GS Strategic Inwestments
Limited, Macquarie India Holdings Limited, PTC India Limited and
the Company, form an integral part of these Articles. To the extent that
anything contained in Articles 1 t0 111 is incunsistent with anything
cuntained in the Shareholders Agreement Artieles, the pruvisions of the
Shareholders Agreement Articles shall prevail

DEFINITION AND INTERPR ETATION

113.1 in these Articles, the following capttalised words and expressions
have the meanings aseribed to them Lelow, unless the context
atherwise requires:

“20%% Block” siull have the meantyy ascribed to it in Article 116,

“Accepted New Securities” shll have the nieaning aseribed tn
Article 121.5; :

e
2
TR

“Affitiate” In respect of & Person, means any entity that directly or
indirectly Contrels, is Controtled by or is under common Control
with such Person and with respect to MQ only, will also include any
infrastructure fund Controlled ar managed by Maequarie Group
Limited or an Affiliate of Macquarie Group Limited;

“Associate” means:

(i) in the context of the Promaoter only, any Person who is directly
or indirectly a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Promoter;

(i)  in the context of GS anly, any Person who is directly or
indirectly a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc,; and

(i) in the context of MQ anly, any Person who is directly or
indirectly a wholly-owned subsidiary of Macquarie Group
Limited and any fund which is Controlled or managed by
Macquarie Group Limited or an Affiflate of Macquarie Group
Limited; i

“Auditors” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article 126.1:
"Business” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article 114.1;

“Business Day(s)” means any day ather than Saturdays, Supdays
and public holidays in New Delhi, Singapore, Hong Kong, Mau ritiys,
Sydney or New York as the context may require;

“Business Plan” means the annual business plan of the Company as
is more fully described in Article 125;

"Chairman” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article 116.5;
“Code” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article 120.8;

“Company Covenants” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in
Article 12B.1;

"Cumpany Secretary” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article
116.6;

"Competitor” means any Person which carries on, or 5 engaged in
any business or other activity which is the same as or competes with
the Business, or Controls any Person which carries on or is engaged
in such busiress or activity, but does not include any infrastructure
fund Controlled or managed by MQ or an Associate of MQ;

“Competitor Price” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article
122.3{k};

“Contrel” and cognate expressions when used with respect to any
Person means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power
direct or cause the directiyn of the management or policies of such
Person, whether through beneficial ownership, directly or indirectls,
of vating securities of such body corporate, or the abiline to control
the compositiun of the majority of or the decisions of the board of
directurs or equivalent goveming body of such company or other
body corpurate by contract or otherwise; provided that, without
limiting the generality of the foregoing, (i} any Person which owns,
directly or indirectly, securities representing mure than 50% of the
value or voting power of a COrporation or more than 50% of the
partnership, membership or other ownership interests (based upon
value or vete) of any other Person shall always be deemed to be in
Cuntrol of such other Person; ur (b} where the Person is a fund any

manager of such fund, shall always he deemed 1o be in Contral of
such Persun;

“Encumnber” mears and inciudes to pernut b exist or create, or
FRoTE 2 oxist or to.be created, any right, title or interest by way
in the nature of sale, agreement Lo sell, pledge, hypothecation,
e, hire-purchase, lease, len, tenancy, martgage, charge, co-
ownership, attachment nr pracess of anv cnurt, teibunal or other
authority, statutory liabilities which are reciverable by sale of

- property ora n¥ other third party tights or encu mbrances;

e
L



“Limern Sector” sHall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article
114.1fal;

“Enwrpy Pund” stpll have the meaning aseribed to it in Articte
HERINH

“Erd Pate” meang the third anniversary from the date on which
these Articies are hdopted by the Company or such other date as
mintually agreed biiween the Investers and the Promoter;

“Fquaty Call” shail bave the meaning given to it in the Share
Subseripticon Apregment;

“Eguity Call Notige” shall have the meaning given to it in the Share
Submeription Aprapient;

“Yiguity Shares” means the equity shares of the Company having a
fare vialue 0f By 1|J cach;

YESOT mieans e employes stock option plan of the Company as
deseribaed m At 1240

“ESOP Shore” sBall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article
1240400

“Tramewiork Strafogic Plan” shall have the imeaning ascribed borit i
Artile 12570

“Fipancial Year | means the perind beginning on April Ist every
caleralar vear andl ending on March 3ist of the subsequent calendar
yearm

“First Acveptang: Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in
Article 1220300,

First Offer Notie” shali have the meaning aseribed to it in Article
122.30a),

“pirst Transfer Feriad” shail have the meaning ascribed to it in
Arsiche 12234}

“Caemeral Moetifip” means a mealing of the sharchotders of the
Lonnany;

“Ciovernmeniaty Authority” means any national, state, or focal

government; ang subdivision qr ageney thereof, mr any other entity,
inchading, the RPL, exercising any executive, statutory or logislative
autharity; and gny statutnry autherity having jurisdiction over the
Campany;

AT me

o fn Strategic Investments Limited, a company
incorparated whth fimited Hability under the laws of Mauritius and
whase registered office (s at Level 3, Alexander House, 35 Cybor
Clity, Bhene, Mauritius;

“ed Perecree dhasl have the meaning ascribed taitin Article 116.2;
TGS Eyuity Call Ameum” shall have the meaning gven Lo it in the
share Subemerichion Agreement;

“hvesdment Opnstres”
Article 116 1403

shall have the meaaing ascnbed ot in

Il shall have the ewaning ascrited w it m Artivhe

Chvenbars”

pans betl MQ and G5 and vesine” means either of
thom Tre tergs “lnvestar” shall include any Associate al MQoor s
who acgueres i nf either (355 o1 MOYs Equity Shares and evecutes a
ind ot ovatfon ard ecleasy inacennlaace with Al W 122A0,

Tawestor Avipptamee Nolige” shall bave the maning ascribed to @
ATt 122 R .

“rers embor Dagetars” shall huve the meaning ascribred 1ok om Artivle

1.2,

Lvestar Offer Notee® <hall have the meaning ascribed 1o it in

LT TITI Y TH
St 2L 2y

uInvestor Offer Price” shall have the méaning ascribed to it in Article
1222 - S

“lnvestar Transfer Shares” shall have the mearung ascribed to it in
Article 122.3,"

“IPO" means the first public offering of the Equuty Shares, whether
by way of an offer for sale or a [resh issue or a combination thereof,
and the listing of such Equity Shares and their admission 1o trading
on a Recognised Stock Exchange, and in which the urderwriting
and placement of the Equity Shares is managed by one or mare I[FO
Investment Banks;

“IPO tovestment Bank” means a recognised investment bank with
extensive experience of capital markets that has been appointed as
manager for the IPO;

“Law(s)” means any statute, faw, regulation ondinance, rule,
judgment, notification, nrder, decree,  byelaw,  govenment
appravai, directive, guideline, requirement or other governmental
restriction, or any similar farm of decision of, or determination by, or
any interpretation or policy issucd by any Governanental Authority
and includes the policies of the Governmental Authorities in India
regulating industrial activity, foreign investment and external
commetcial borrowing:

“M(’ means Macquarie India Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated with limited Kability under the laws of Mauritius and
whose registered office is at 10 Trerc Felix De \alois Street, [ort
Louis, Mauritius;

“Macquarie Group Limited” means Macquarie Group limited a
company duly incorpurated and validly existing under the laws of
Australia with ABN 94 122 165 279 and having its registered office
at No. 1 Martin Piace, Sydney, NSW 2000, Austraiia:

“Mamorandum of Associalion” means the memerandum  of
association of the Campany;

“MQ Director” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Articie 11#.2;

“MQ Equity Call Amaunt” shall have the meaning given to it in the
Share Subscription Agreeinent;

“NBEC” means a non-banking finance company as defined in the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1904;

" New Securitics” shall have the mmeaning ascribed to at in Article
121.2;

“No-Conflict Policy™ shall have the meaning ascribead te b in Acticle
114.4;

“Non.Transterring lvestor” shall have the aearing ascribed ta it in
Articke 122.3;

“Notice of Nominatinn/ Remeval” shall have the meaning ascridwnl
to itin Articte 1oty

"Natice of Proportionaty New Securibies” shall have the meaming
ascribed b it in Article 12140

“Offer Period” shall have the micaning ascribed et in Arhele
122.2{c) :

“Offering lavestor” shall have the meaning asrbed be ot in Arhle
1222k

“Persan ateans any natural peesan, cocporation. Vrmatedd parknessiug
general partnership, joiat stk company, jrint v enture. assoctation,
gy, trust, bank, trust company, Land trust business trust oy
zation, shwther o1 net a legal entity and gaveranwn
J poitical suldivision thereot or therels.



- and validly existing undet the laws of India and having its registered
" office at 2nd Floor, NBCC Tower, 15 Bhikaji Catna Place, New Dolhi
~11006; T .

_%’Pg’pn;ote._r Offér Pericd” shall havé the meaning ascribed to it in
Article 122.3(bY;

“Promoter Offer Price” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in

Acticle 122.3(b);
“Promoter Transfer Shares” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in
-Articie'lm AR R .

“Pcﬁpo-rﬁf;naie New Securities” shall have the meaning ascribed to it
in Article 121.2;" '

"Proportionate Offered Shares” shall have the meaning ascribed fo it
in Article 122.2({a);

“PTC Competitor” means a Person which is aclively involved ar
actively engaged in, or actively carries on, the pawer trading business
in India and would include such Person’s Affiliates;

“RBI” means the _Resérve Bank of India;

“Recognised Stock Exchange” means the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited or the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited;

“Related Energy Infrastructure Sector” shall have the meaning
ascribed to it in Article 114.1(b);

“Relevant Equity Shares” means at any time, the total issued and
paid up Equity Shares of the Company at that time less any ESQP
Shares that have been issued;

“Reserved Item” shall have the meaning ascribed to 3t 5n Artide
117 )

"ROLR Acceptance Period” shall have the meaning aseribed ta it in
Article 122.3(k);

"ROLR Notice” shall have the .rneaning ascribed to it in Article
122.3(k);

"Rs. or “Rupee” means the lawful currency of India;
“SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

“Second Acceptance Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in
Article 122.3(e),

“Second Offer Notice” shail have the meaning ascribed to it in Artiche
122 3(d);

“Second Offer Period” shall have the meaning ascribed 1o it in Article
1223{c);

“Second Offer Price” shall have the meaning ascribed Lo it i Article

122.3(c);

“Second Transfer Period” shall have the meaning ascribed o o in
Article 122.3(f);

“Security” means any equily or preference shares, scripts, buoands,
debentures, derivatives, warranbs or rights, options or interess
(including rights of conversion or exchange) thereon;

“Share Subscriptiun Agreement” shall mean the share subseriptun
agreement dated 28 Decernber 2007 vntered into by the G5, MO, the
Promater and the Company;

“Slrategic Plan” means the stratogic plon for the Campany a< morne
fully described in Article 14;

"Subscription Completion”™ shall have the meanting ascribed Lo i .

Article 121.1; i

“Subscription Consideration” <halt have the meaning given L
the Share Subseription Agreement;

[

i14.1

“Subseription Monies” shall have the meaning ascribed 1o it in
Article 121.5;

"Tag-Along Notice” shall have the meaning ascribed o 3t in Article
122.4;

“Tag-Along Right” shalt have the meaning aseribed 1o 1 i Article
1224

“Tag-Along Shares” shall have the meaning aseribed Lo b i Article
122.4;

“The Goldman Sachs Group. Inc” means a corporatiun duby
organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, USA and whose
principal place of business is at ¢ /o Goldman Sachs & o, B5 Braad
Street, New York, New York, 10004, USA;

“Tutal Equity Shares” means the total issued, subscribed and paid-
up Equity Shares fur the time being of the Company;

“Transaction Periud” shali have the meaning ascribed to it in Article

122.2(d);

“Transter” muans the sale, gift, pledge, assignment, transfer, transf er
in trust, mortgage. alienation, hypothecation, encumbering ar
dispusition of Equity Shares in any manner whatsaever, volunlariby
ur involuntarity, including, without {Emitation, any atlachment,
assignment fur the benefit of creditors or transfer by operation of
law or otherwise and the term "Transferred” shatl be construed
accordingly;

“Transferring Investor” shall have the meaning ascribed o it in
Article 122.3;

"Transferring Shareholder” shall have the meaning ascribed ta it in
Article 122.5;

“United States person” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in
Article 120.8;

“LLS Economie Sanctiuns” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in
Article 120.5;

“US Investar” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Article 120.8;
and

“LSD” means the lawful currency af the United States of America,
BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

The Company is a non-public depusit taking NBFC which shall be
enpaged in the follawing business {the "Business™). It:

(a)  will have a primary focus un making investments {including
providing debt and financial services) in power generation,
tronsmiassion and distributinn {collectively “Energy Sector”);

thy  will 95 a secondary focus make wwestments {including
providing debt and financial services) in fuel sources, fuel
related imfrastructure and serviees such as gas pipelines,
LNG teratinals, fuel linked ports, ENETEY SeCHOr cquipmient
manefacturers and FPC cantractors froliochively “Related
Energy Infrastructure Secior™y provided that the aggregale
of the investments made in the Related Energy Infrastoacture
~echor at any bame shall olwows be less than the agurepate
of the investments made in the Encigy Sector. Should such
mvestments oy Related Energy Infrastructure Soctor excesd
these made in the Enerey Sector; such imvestiments will Ly
subject o the prior written spprovel of vach Ivestor, Provided
turther, that whde cansidering the aggregate investment made
i the Related Energy Intrastruclure Sector and in the Energy

'\' Pector only she provision of Jebt and equity will be considered

aawd the provision of financial services shall be eveluded,

g

-« oy estableds a fund (the “Energy Fund”y o invest in the
L Energy Sector and iy the Relawed Energy lafrastiuctone Sectar



BOARD OF THE COMPANY

and such othr funds to invest in the Energy Sector and in the
Related Enetey Infrastructure Sector as decided by the Bnard
from time tofime. Any proposed investment by the Cempany

“ih a ‘third garty fund (le. a fund not directly/indireetly
managed nr eontralled by the Company). may only be made
with the prigr written approval of each Investor;

(d) may directly or thriough a subsidiary of the Company act as
the asset mgnagdr/investment advisor of the Energy Tund
and such atffer funds raised;

(&)  may offer cgrtain financial solutions to entities engaged in the

Energy Sectpr including providing financial advisory services
and term fifancing;

(ff  may make|treasury investments. However, any lreasury
operations jn relation to capital {share capital and share
premium} cpntributed by the Promater and the bnvestors and
debt capita] raised for use in the Business will be deploved
only in instfuments/ financial products which ensure capital
protection, [The surplus rapital gencrated nut of the income
of the aperdtions of the Business and those that form part of
the generall reserves and surpluses of the Company will be
deploved, Lintit invested/ redepioyed in the Business, fur
treasury offerations based on prudent treasury manapement
guidelines gdopted by the Board from time tn time.

The Company shilt nniy undertake business outside the seope nf the
Business with thg prior written appraval of each Investnr.

Investments by the Promoter and its subsidiaries (other than the
Company) in the Energy Sector shall be made in accordance with
the procedurc agread between the Investors, the Promoter and the
Campany.

Investment decisjons of the Energy Fund wili be taken by the hoard
aof the Encrgy Fgnd/manager/suttably empowered cnmmittes, as
may be agrecd when the fund mandate is fully developed. Sufficient
investment expoftise will be available to the authority making the
investment dectgons fur the Encrgy Fund.

Investments by pach of the Company and the Energy Tund shall
be made in accgrdance with the no conflict policy agreed by the
Investors, the Pfnmoter and the Cnmpany {collectively referred to
as the “Nu-Conflict Policy™). The Company (as investinent manager
and /or sponsor pf the Energy Fund, directiv ur through asubsidiary)
shalt ensure that the Fnergy Fund emmplics with the Nn-Conflar
Policy.

The prospectusf placemment memorandum and such other putblic
docoments whith deseribe the Encrgy Fuad shall, if reqaiced by
applicable Law]include a ctause describing the No-Conflict Pultey,
substantially sefting out the conteats of such No-Conilict Peliey

STIARE CAPITAL AND VARIATION OF RIGHTS

Subject ta the grovisions of these Arbicies, the Company shall have
the power to isque prefereace shartes carrying a tight af tedempbon
out of profits which would otherwise be avatlable for dividend or
out of the provgeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the purpose
of such redemption or Bable to be redeemed at the aption of the
Company and [he Board may subject to ihe provisions of bBection Bt
of the Actexerdise such powers b such mamer as mav e provided
for in these Argcles.

The Company Jwav, from time to time, by ardinary reselouen alter
the conditionslal its Memorandwmn of Assocatien o jocreane 14

as tnay be spedified in the reselotion.

The Board sha! consist of 6 members The aumber of the T
miav bencreaged iy accondaoce with applivable Baw

3

Subject to Article 116.4, a sharehnider shali be entitled ta appotnt one
director for every 20% of the Relevant Equity Shares {a “20% Block”™)
held by such sharcholder {a Director appointed by MQ is referned
to as a “MQ Director” and a Director appointed by G5 is referred
to as a “GS Director” and collertively refermd toas the “hwesior
Directors”).

In the event that a shareholder's perventage of Relevant Eguty
Shares reduces below a 20% Binck {te., less than 200, 407, noibs.
or BI%), then the relevant number of Directors nnminated by such
shareholder shait forthwith resign from bis/their office and the
sharchulder shall not be entitled to appoint another Director until
its percentage of the Refevant Equity Shares erosses 2 20% Bhok
threshoid. For the purposes of Article 1162 and this Arbcle 1163,
a sharehaider's percentage uf Retevant Equity Shares shabi bw the
aggregate of the shareholding of that sharehalder and itz Affibaes
and /or Associates,

In addition to the Directors appointed in accordance with Article
116.2 and 116.3, the Promoter shall be entitled to appointany person
being an “indcpendent director” on the board of directors of the
Promoter as a Dirertar on the Board., An “independent director”
shall be as defined in Clause 49 af the standand listing agreomeat
prescribed by SEBI for stock exchanges.

One of the Directors numinated by the Promoter shall be the
chairman of the Board {("Chairman”). In the event of an equabty o
votes on any matter put to the vote of the Board, the Chairntan sholi
have a casting vote om thal matter,

Each of the Investars and the Promoter shall be entited b, on
written notification (ncluding by facsimile or e-mail) to the
company secretary [the “Company Secrutary”) nf the Company
{(which notification shall be deemed to be natice to the other
shareholders) (“Notice of Nomination/Removal”), have nominaw.d
{nr appointment to or removed from or replaced on the Board, as the
case may be, any individual as Director and any ather individual tu
act as altemate Dircctor for the Director in the absence of the lattes
in accardance with the provisions uf the Ael. Any casual vovwney in
the Board seat oceupied by a Director shal) be filled by an individual
rominated by the shareholder that originally nominated such
Directar. 1t is clarified that an investor Director and/or his alternate
can only be remaoved at the request of the Investor wha appointed
the said Investor Director ar‘n‘l/nr his alternate.

Each sharcholder shall be entitled to nmminate atlernate Director or
cach Director nominated by it Such alternate Director may attosd
all meetings and exercise all voting rights of the pominated Dhrectos
where such naminated Ditector is not in sttendance.

The appointment, removal of replacement of a Director wolb Lo the
first items nf business at the Board meeting or the Genwral Mevting o
the case may be, immediately following the receipt by the Compane
Secretary of a Notior of Nomvnation/Removal,

Retirtng Directors can be nominated for re-appeintment by A
shareholder that nomtinated their earlier appointment as Pirectos

Each of the sharcholiters shall excreise their veting rights o jose
effect to the provisions of this Article 116 and to ensure that i
of the Directors nominated in arcordance with this Aricle 1o e
appuinted as Directars of the Company.

The Board shall meet at least four times a year and in accordanve wel
the Art. Meetings of the Bnard will be held in such place as o [
prutuatiy agreed to by the Board and shall, subject to appiicalbile b,
covide the favibty for Dhirectors based outside brdia ta parbopate
vav af televonference or video eomborence.

least 10 davs motive of a peeting af directors shall be given by all
‘rlclnrfa, proveded always that a meeting may be curvered b

’ ShArlor notice than U davs with the cansent of the majority ot the
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Directors (such majnrity to include af of the Investor Directors when
any Reserved ltem is on the agenda at a meeting). The notice of
vach Board meeting shail include an agenda setting vut the business
priposed ty be transacted at the meeting, Withrut the unanbmous
consent of the Directors, ne meeting should vote upon any matter
other than that set out in the agenda circulated aling with the
Turtice,

The quarum fnr a meeting of the Board shall be nne third of its total
strength ar two Diroctors, whichever is higher, provided that in the
event that any Reserved ltem is on the agenda far such meeting, no
qunrum shail be deemed to be present itnfess me MQ Director and
one G5 Director are present. [f a qunrum is not present at a meeting
of the Board, including with respect to a Reserved Item, such
meeting shall be adjourned to the same ime on the same day of the
frllowing week at the same venue, at which meeting there shail be
o requirement as b the presence of any of the Investor Directors to
constititte the quorum with respect to the Reserved Ttem.

Subject to Articles 116.12 and 117, all decisions of the Board shail be
taken by simple majority of those Dircctnrs present and voting. The
fnltowing matters must be referred to the Board:

(a)  all investments other than freasury investments made in
accordance with Article 114.1(f);

(b)  any change in the accounting principles or policies of the
Company;

fe]  the settlement of any material litigation by the Company;

(d}  the appointment of the Chief Exceutive Qfficer or the Chicf
Financial Officer, or equivalent;

{¢)  the initial composition, and subsequent appointment and/
or removal of any members, of an investment committes (the
“investment Cornmittee™); and

(fy  the establishment by the Company of any new funds.

Equity Calls shall be madc by the Board as and when, i in its business
judgement, feels the same is necessitated.

Investor Director

{a}  Each of MQ and G5 shall ensure that the MEQ Directnr and
the GS Director, respectively, is not a director nf any Person
invnlved nr engaged in the Energy Sector or Related Energy
Infrastructure Sector in Indja. If any Investor Director accepts
the directorship uf any sueh Person, then such Investor
Dircctor shall, and the concerned Investor shall cause such
Investor Director to, forthwith resign from his directorship on
the Brrard, to be replaced by an alternative Investor Thrector,
appointed by such investor.

b} Withmut prejudice to the customa ry fiduciary duties of
Directors in discharge of their duties, every Investor Director
shall, if 50 required by the Brard, before entering upon his
duties, sign a declaration pledging himsclf tn ohserve strict
seereey In respect of and keep confidential all mfarmation of
the Company disclosed to hitn or to which he becomes privy
and shall by such declaratioun pledyre himself not 1o roveal the
Same o any person except:

(i) when required tn do so by the Bnard;

{ity  for his inlernal reporting requirements:

titty  where the Investor Directnr feets that it is 10 the best
interest of the Company, to consult with the Investar’s

Affiliates (wh'ich mcludes the  Affiliates dircctur-,\'

officers and emplovers) with a view t take strateg
value-add inputs on any specific matter from
Affiliates of the Investar;

o5

117.1

117.2
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1152

1183

1154

1155

1186
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in 60 far as may be permitted by or may be necessary
in erder fo eomply with any of the provisions in this
Articles of Association; or

(v} asrequired by a court of law.
RESERVED ITEMS

For so long as an Investor is entitled to nominate an Investor
Director, the Company shall nol, and the Promater shail procure
that the Company shall not, take any action with respect to any of
the matters listed below (“Reserved Items”) unless such matter has
been, subject to Articles 116.13 and 1172, approved at a meeting of
the Board, by each investor Director:

(a)  any adverse variation in the rights attached to any
of the Investors’ Equity Shates, including by way of
amendment to the MoA or AoA of the Company.

(b} any merger, amalgamation, de-merger, re-organisation
or voluntary winding up of the Company,

{c}  anychange in the dividend poliey of the Cempany.

(d)  any transaction or series of tranwactions in a given
Financial Year between the Company and its Affiliate
or between the Company and the Prometer of a value
either individually or in aggregate of more than the
Rupee equivalent of USD 100,000, except infusion of
capital by the Promoter,

For the avoidanee of doubt, the quorum of any meeting of the

Board ta take an action on any Reserved ltem shali be as per Article
116.13.

SHAREHOLDER MEETINGS

Every year lhe Company shall hold in addition to any other General
Meetings, an annual General Meeting in accordance with Section 166
of the Act. Not more than 15 months shall elapse between the date of
one annual General Meeting and that of the next.

Netice for any gencral meeting of the sharehelders shall not be less
than 21 days unless and to the extent that both Investors consent to a
sharter period in writing in advance.

The quorum for a General Meeting shall be the minimum quorim
as set out in the Act. A corporate shareholder represented by a duly
authorized representative shall be deemed to be present in person
for purposes of this Article 1183 and Articl 1184. If a querum is
not present at a General Meeting the meeting shafl be adjourned in
accordance with Section 174 of the Act.

Subject to Articles 117.1 and 1185, any resolution, which under the
provisions of the Act or the Atticles is permitted or is required to
he done or passed by the Company in a General Meeting shall be
sufficiently so done if passed by ardinary resolution, as defined
under Section 189(1) nf the Act, unjess either the Act or the Articles
specifically require such aet to be done or resolution passed by a
special resolution as defined under Section 189(2) of the Act.

Any matter faliing under the Reserved ltems shall first be conside red
and appraved by the Board in accontance with Article 117, before
buing considered by the Company in a Generat Meeting.

The General Meeting shall, subject to appiicable Law, provide the
facility for shareholders based outside India to participate by way of
teteconference or video coniprence.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

: Company shall be managed p rofessionally. It shall have an
priate management structure and a compensation  policy
nsurate with its scale of operatinns with a view of achieving
t leadership and achieving an IPO, The organization structure
as is approved by the Board.
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The Companyt and the Promoter hereby jointly and severally
undettabe to qomply with the following envenants {"Cumpany
Cuvenanis)

The Company pndertakes to, at all times, act in a manner censistent
with the rights gnd obligations of the shareholders under the Articles,

todhe extent pdrmitted by Law,

The Company} shall keep the Investors informed, on a current
basiy, of any dvents, discussions, notices or changes with respect
ur regulatory investigation or action involving the
y of its subsidiaries, 5o that the Investor will have
the oppurtunily to take appropriate steps to avoid or mitigate
any reguiatory consequences to them that might anse from such
rrnunal ot refulatnry investigation or action and the Company
shiall reasonably ¢o nperate with the Investors, their members and
their respective Affitiates in an effort to avoid or mitigate any cost
ur regulatory gonsequences that might arise from such investigation
or action (incleding by reviewing written submissions in advanee,
altending mediings with authorities, coordinating and providing
assistance in fneetings with regulators and, if requested by an
Investor, making peblic announcements of such matters),

te any Crimina
Cnmpany or a

The Compan
axclusively f
Plan and will

will use the Initial Subscription Consideration
the purpose set out in the Framework Strategic
se the MQ Equity Call Amount and the GS Equity
Call Amount gxdusively for the purpose set out in the Equity Call
Nntice.

The Cornpanypwilt nat take any action with respect to the use of the
Subscription onsideration {or any part thereof) to fund, directly
or indirectly, pny business activities with, or for the benefit of, a
govemment, gational, resident or legal entity of Cuba, Sudan, Iran,
hry Mther country with respect to which U5, persons
are prohibitedhy any regulation or statute administered by the Office
of Foreign Asgets Control of the United States Treasury Department
i"U.5. Econothic Sanctions™) from doing business. The Company
shall be deerpd to have complied with this covenant if prior ta such
funding, it hag enneducted a reasonable due diligence and has sought
customary represetitations and warranties from the person which is
being funded ghat such person is not any such government, nationat,
vesident or begal entity.

Myuanmar, or

Fach of the Jumpany, the Promoter and the Investors agrees that
the Company will notify the Investor Directors in advance of any
mattcr that idto come before the Board that concerns a business or
activity that melates in any way to a country, government, entity or a
vationas of Ngrth Karea, Iraq, Libya, Cuba, Iran, Myanmar or Sudan,
ar atherwise) relates divectly or indirectly with any government,
vuLntry ar offier entity or person that is the target of U5 economic
sanctions adfumstered by the US. Treasury Department Office Of
Fureign Assdts Control, imcluding Specially Designated Nationals
and Blocked Persuns os identifiedd on the intenwet web site:
hip o/ Fwwittreas gov foffices / enforcement / ofac /. With respect to
anv such bufiness or activity, each of the Company, the Prometer
and the [nvéstors further agrees that no Investor Director shall
attend anyv gart of a Bnard meeting at which anv such business
or activity i discussed, approved or voted upon and shall recuse
themselves ffom any and all discussion, votes, approvals and any
other matteds related to any such business or activity, whether
propreed o pring

tinsted Statgs Depository or other Financial Services Activities

.
1) The Jompoany confims that: (1) the Company dovs n

cnpagk. and that it has no intention of engaging (whic m

Lor at} purposes of this section (a) and of section (0 belo
shall pwtude nwaintaining an office of any tvpej, directly in

dejoddtony o other financial services activities in the United
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+ States; (2) the Coinpany does not own or control (which terny,
. for afl purposes bf -this section (a) and of secticn (b} below,

- 'ghall be interpreted ns applled by the Board of Governnrs

{®)

of the US. Federal Reserve System},-and has no intention of
acquiring ownership or control of, more than five percent ot
bny class of voting securities of (i) a U.S. company engagesd
directly or indirectly (which for all purposes of this scction
{a) and of section (b) below shall mean through any chain
of cantro)) in depesitory or other financial services activities
or (i) a tfompany that directly or indirectly owns or contrals
more than five percent of any class of voling securities of a
company engagcd directly or indirectly in depositery or other
financial services activities in the United States; and (3) the

. 'Company Idmluot_othemm control, and has no intention of
otherwise acquiring control of, any comparny engaged, directly
or Indirectly, in depository or other financial services activitios
in the United States.

.The Company agrees that it will not, without the prior written
consent of each Investor (whlch cansent may be given ot
withheld 'in the Investor’s absolute dlscret:on) directly or
indirectly: (1) engage, or filc an application or notice to en PR
in depasitory or ether financial services activities in the United
States; (2) acquire, or file an application or notice to acquine

. ownership or control of, more than five percent of any clas:
of voting securities of () a U.5. company engaged directly o)
indirectly in depository ot other financial services activities nr
(i}) a company that directly or indirectly owns or controls muare
than five percent of any class of voting securities of acompany
erlgaged directly or indirectly in depository or other financial
services activities in the United States; or (3) otherwise acquire,
or file.an application or notice otherwise t@ acquire control vl
any campany engaged, directly or indirectly, in depository or
other financial services activities in the United States.

For purposes of paragraphs (a) throegh (d) of this Article 120.8;

(@)

{®)

{c)

(d)

*US. Investor” means [A) any Investor that is a United States
personand (B) any Investor that is an entity treated as a loreigo
partnership for U.5. federal incone tax purposes, one or mors
of the owners of which are United States persons; and

"United States person” means any person described in Section
7701(a)(30) of the Internai Revenue Code of 1986, as amwnided
{the “Code”).

Classification for U.S. Tax Purposes.

The Company will not take any action inconsistent with the
treatment of the Company as a corporation for U5 fodenal
income tax purposes and will not elect to be treated o o
entity other than corporation for US. federal income s
purposes unless agreed upon by each US, Investar.

Passive Ferelgn Investment Company.

The Company agrees, at the Company’'s expense, 1o e
available to any U5 Investor upon request, the boaks a:d
records of the Company and itsdirectand indirect subwudiaries.
and o provide information te such U5, Investor portinen:
to the Company's or any subsidiary’s status or potentia!
status as a passive loreign investment company (71°FIC7 0
defined under section 1297 of the Internal Roverioe Cate oo
the United States. Upon a detennination by the Conypars
v US. Investor or any taxing authorily that the Compas
any direct or indirect subsidiary has been or - Lhely 1
me a PR, the Cnmpany will provide such US toveem
he Company’s expense, with all information reasonatls
ilable to the Company or any of its subsidianes to poran
ch U8 tnvestor to (i) accurately prepare all ros relucee
©and compty with any repotting requirements as o realt o
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such :determination and (i) make eny election (including,
without limitation, a “qualified electing fund” election under

' Sccuon 1295 of the Code), with respect to the Company or
any of its direct or Indirect subsidiaries, and comply with
any reporting or other requirements incldent ta such election.
If a determination is made that the Campany is a PFIC
for a particular -year, then for such year and for each year

- thereafter, the Company, at the Company’s expense, will also
provide each 1.5, [nvestor with a completed “PFIC Annua!

* Information Statement” as required by Treasury Regulation
Section 1,1295-1(g).

" Inthé eventany Investor Director or his altemate suffers an y liability,

damage, action, claim, cost, charge, or expense, by virtue of any act
ar abstinence on the part of the Investar Director or the altemate
whilst acting as a Director of the Company pursuant to any decision
af the Board to which that Director has not consented, then (without
limiting any other right of such Investor Director or his alternate
under faw} the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
harmiess the Investor Director or such alternate against any and all
tabitity, damage, action, claim, cost, charge, or expense (including,
without limitatian, legal fees, experts’ fees, consultants’ fees, and all
casts and expenses incurred in the recovery of the amount payable
urder this undertaking), incurred ar suffered by the Investor Director
or his alternate, provided that this indemnity shall not apply to any
liability, claim, action, damage, cost, charge ar expense arising as a
result of any negligence or misfeasance of the Investor Director.

The investrment policy for the Company (the “Ivestment Policy”)
shall be developed, adopted and revised by the Baard, The Investment
Palicy shall outline inve stment procedures and clear qualitative and
quantitative investrnent criteria far direct investments.

The management of the Company will, as and when decmed
necessary by them or as required by this Article, seek consultation
from the Investor Directars on varilius business/ management
related ratters. )f the management seeks any consultalion from
an Investor Director, such Director shall provide his inputs within
7 days from the date of the request, or such period as is mutually
agreed by the shareholders. Dnce an Investor Directar has provided
the management with his inputs, the Company, if it considers it
necessary, shall discuss these inputs with the [nvestur. Should
consuitative inputs nat come tu the Company fram the Investor
Director within 7 days (or such mutually agreed period) then the
management may proceed with its decision-making without the
Investor Directors’ inputs.

ANTI-DILUTION PROTECTION

Until the campietion of subscription under the Share Subscriptiun
Agreement (“Subseription Completion”) the Company shall not,
except pursuant to the ESOP in accordance with Article 124, issue
further Equity Shares or Securities convertible into Equity Shares to
any other Person without the prior written consent of vach Investor
and such issue shail be on such terms as agreed by both Investors.

After the Subscriptian Completion and until the completion of an
0, a further issue nf Equity Shares or of Securities comvertible inta
Equity Shares (such further Securitics, the “New Securities”) by the
Cnmpany (otherwise than through an IPO in accordance with Article
123 hercof or pursuant to the ESOP in accordance with Articie 124)
shall only be permitted if the New Securities are first offered to the
existing halders of Equity Shares of the Company in proportiun with
their ownership of the Relevant Cquity Shares (such proportionale
Becurities to be offered, the “Proportionate New Becurities”}) in
accondance with the proceduare set out belaw.

Subiject to Article 1216, the Proporlionat: New Securitios offered to a

sharcholder may not be subseribed for by anv person other than shat
shareholder or its Affiline.

121.4

1215

1216

1221

1222
1223
1224
1225
122.5.1

12252
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Within 30 Business Days of the passing of the sharehalder's
resolution approving the issuance of New Securities, the Company
shalt uffer the Proportionate New Securities by notice in writing
{"Notice of Proportionate New Securities”) stazing the price thereof.
The Propurtionate New Securities shall be issued at the same
price and on the same terms and conditions w cach uf the existing
shareholders including the Pramoter.

Each shareholder shall reply in writing tu the Notice of Prnportionate
New Securities within 21 Business Days of the receipt thereof stating
the number, if any, nf the Proportionate New Securities that it wishes
to subscribe for {“Accepted New Securities”) along with payment
thereof as per the price stated in the Notice of Proportionate New
Securities (“Suhscription Monies™). An Investor may nominate its
Affiliate to subscribe far the Accepted New Securities,

Proportionate New Securities that are not accepted by a shareholder
shali be offered, in accordance with the above procedure, to the
other holders of Equity Sharcs of the Cnmpany in proportian to
their awnership of the Relevant Equity Shares (including any Equity
Shares comprised in the Accepled New Securities). New Securilies
that are iefl over after such affer may be allotted in accordance with
the Act to any third party as identified by the Board. Provided that
any issue of shares t a third party shunid be at a price not less than
that offered to the sharcholders and on terms ne mure favourable
than those offered to the shareholders.

TRANSFER OF SHARES

Restrictions on Transfer

(8}  Thelnvestors and the Promoter shall not Transfer their Equity
Shares to any Person until IPO without complying with the

proredure set out in Articles 122.2 to 122.5 beluw.

(b} The provisions nf Article 122.2 to 122.4 shall not apply ta any
Transfer of Equity Shares by the Promoter or an Investar to its
Associate, not being a Competitor, made in accordance with
Article 122.5 and any such Transfer shall not require the prior

cansent of any of the other shareholders.
[defeted]
[deieted)
|deleted]
Transfers to Assoctates

Inthe event an Investor or the Promoter {“Transferring Shareholder”
Transfers all uf its Equity Sharcs lo any of its Associates, such
Transfer must be made in arcardance with applicable Law and
such Transferting Shareholder shall cause the Associate to execute
a deed of novation and release in a form mually agreed by the
sharehoiders prior v such Associate acquiring such Equity Shares
nndkhcImn'ﬁtor(s)and/orLhePromoterwhoarenottransferring their
Equity Shares shall exccute such deed af novation and release. The
Associate piust be under an obligation to retransfer its Equity Shares
to the Transferring Sharcholder or an Assoctate af the Transferring
shareholder imnvediately if it ceascs to be an Associate.

In the event that the Transferring Shareholder Transfers less than ail
ot the Equity Shares held by it to anv of its Associates:

ab  the Transforring Shareholder shall cause such Associate to
sign a deed of adherence, in a form mutually agreed by the

sharebiolders;

-(-’n]_‘-‘ N Transh ming Shareholder must be pranted the exclusive
/ o £ s
“2

B4 exercise votes in respect of cach Equity Share
Tra Q}.rred an behalf of the transferee;

chy ! 'ﬁn A.rhn_lm shall apply as if lhe Transterring Sharcholder and
the: tfanisferee is one sharcholdur;
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all the rights of the transferce under the Articles shall be
- exercised dxciusively by the Transferring Sharehnioet;

@

{z] any noticegiven by the Transferring Sharchalder under the
Articles siall be deemed also tu be given by the transferee;

and

it

any nnticrequired to be given to the transferee shall absn be
given to the Transforring, Sharehnider.

Any Transfer off Equity Shares by an Investor or the Promaoter in
contravention n this Article shall be void ab initio and ineffectual
and shalt not bitjd or be recognized by the Company.

FITIAL TUBLIC QOFFERING

The Company shall use its best endeavuurs to achieve an IPO by the
End Date or sudh extended date as may be mutually agreed by the
Promoter and eprh of the Investors. The IPD shalt be based nn the
a‘._ilvif:(' of the i Inwestment Bank. The Investors shall, subject to
applicable Law fhave the right but nu ebligation to participate in the
PO by way of gn offer [nr sale of a part or all of their Equity Shares.

All expenses igcurred m connection with the [PO. except therse

relating 10 an offer for sale by a shareholder, shall be borne by the
Company.

Subject o ap
promaters of t

icahle Law, the Investers shall not be nemed as
: Cumpany in relation to the IPO.

In the event rif gn nverseas offering of the Company's Securities, the
Company shalllcemply with the regulations relating o such uffering
and assist in egabling the Investors to oblain standard registration
rights availabld to private equily investors.

MPLOYEE STOCK OQPTION

Sharcholders lereby agree and acknowledge that:

{a) the Corgpaty is contemplating offering certain emnptoyees
stock omtions under an ESOF to be established for a certain
catcgory of its employees;

(I up o 3 pf the aggregate paid up eyuity share capiial of the
Compagy shall be offered tnits emplayees;

{1 the pricg ot which Equity Shares parsuant tn the ESOP M ESOP

Shares”] shall be offered to the Emplovees shall be determined
b}' e Thoard

Each Investor further covenants that it shatl not object to the offer af
the ESOP Shages t the Campany’s emplavees.

STHATEGH PLAN/ BUSINESS PLAN

Fhe Compafy’s Tusiness including imvestment decisions and
the decidims oo establish and/or manage the Energy Fund and
1l shall be canducted substantiatly o acenrdance

with the Straffrpoe Plan and as decided by the Baoard.

subscauem [

The Strateyic
tu which at
LN CT

Han shall include, in particular, in retation to the period
Flates, ditections far the different business acivities,
o, fuading policy, and distniation poliey.

Adraoesesrl sratepe plan (the “Tramework Stratepic Man™) has
boon grecd Qutwven the Promuster and the fnvestors The Framwework
Strateyn Mg 2hall serve as the initiat template for the first Strategic
Mlan, whish Fhalt e developed i vansaltation with the Invedtors

adepted b the Brovard trens Later tha 3 T 20038,

Flwe Strateyig Plan wiil be seviewed by the Boand from time to une

and i amdeent thoereto sBall e carsaed oot by the Baard

-,

. . . o
The L omgarfy <ol wle devilop the Busimes Plaa, which shall }4‘ ,
’ =

appreved byl Boand priar b the begacayg ot e snseiab vear o whiiel

i zebates arad ‘;_‘—k
-
i -,

i amd ayresd b the Toard feons timee b tine.
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126.2

1263

127.1

12731

1712

12713

127.2

AUDITOR AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial slatements nf the Company shall be audated at 11w
Company's expetse by on independent internationalty vertidied
publie acrounting firm {" Auditor”) selected by the Vompaay

The Company shall appoint ane of the relfowing soonnmitiog,
firms in India, namelv, PriceWaterhouseCoopers, Brnst & Yoo
Deloitte Haskins & Sells, ar KPMG, as the Audilor ab the sevena
annual General Meeting which is seheduled o be held oo or befare
September 30, 2008. The Auditor shall huld ofiice unul the nest
annual General Meeting amd their appointnwent, remuneration.
rights and duties shall be regulated under the provisions of the At

The Company shail deliver to the Jovestors (a) audited financiat
staternents within 9 days after the end nl cach fiscal vear; and (I
un-audited haif yeariy finaneia) statements within 30 deays ab the end
of the 6 months period for the first year al operation ard thereatte
un-audited guarterly financial statements withm 3 davs of the vind
of 3 mnnths period.

Subject to an advanced and reasonable request, the Company will
grant the Investors the right to inspect the facilitivs, baoks, revords
the Company and to discuss the business, aperations and conditaes
of the Company with their respective dinectors, accountants annd
lega) counsel, subject to such persons being made aware of the
econfidentiality obligations under Article 95 and agreeing to abide In
the same.

INFORMATION
Rights to information
A sharcholder may, on giving the Company 7 days prier notice:

discuss the affairs, finances and accotnts of the Cnmpany with si-
Adffiliates, officers and principal executives, subject tr such person:
being made aware of the confidentiality obligations undoer Artive
127 and agreeing to abide by the same;

inspect and request copies of, to the extent the saime may b nevessan
for its accounting purposes and prepating its tax returns, all baoks,
records, accounts, documents and vouchers relating to the Busiaes.
and the affairs of the Company; and

request the Company frrsuch ather informuatinn and data in relation
to the Company that the favestar may reasonably reguire anad the
Company shall provide the Investor with such informativn.

Where the Company provides information to a sharetiabide:
under Articke 127.1 abave, it shall within 7 davs provide the saow
infarmation through the same means to alt ather sharebulder

If, in the reasupable opinion of the management of the o,
any infermation soughl by an Investor pursuant to this Articte 127
is business sensitive of strategically significant fur the Compun
such infarmation mav be disclosed to the Investar only with 1
prior approval of the Board, wohich mav i its diserebon refuse the
disglomure of such infurmatian.

TERMINATION OF ARTICLES 112 TQ 12
Fach of the Articles 112 to 127 shall sutamatically terminate aied
fease to De a part af these artivhes with eikect irem the Jdate uf dey
of the Prospectus with the Registrar of Companics io Telation we the

1L of the equity shares ot the Company

By Oreder of the Buard of Piredtors,
For PTC India Finangial Services Lanited

P TIYae .
A A whal Geval)

Sbrppany Sevretary
[ :

s Dellu



Details of Directors appointing or re-appointin g tn this Annual General Meeting.

Mrs. Rama Murali

Mrs. Rama Murali, aged 62 years, is an Indeperdent Dircctor of our Company and has been on the Board of our Company since 21st April, 2009. She holds
a Bachelors of Arts (Hons) degree fram Mabarani Cnlleye, Jaipur, University of Rajasthan. She is a retired Indian Audit and Accounts Service officer. Mrs.
Murali has served as the Joint Secretary, Departmont of Leononic Affairs, Ministry of Finance. She has also served as the financtal advisor in the Department
of Scientific and Industrial Research, the Council nf Scientific and Tndustrial Reseasch, Government of India, and the New Delhi Municipal Committee where
she was also the overall incharge of finance and accounts. She is alsa a life member of the Indian Institute of Public Auditors.

Other Directorships are; Nit
Mr. Suirinder Singh Kohli

Mr. Surinder Singh Kohli, aged 65 years, in an independent Director of aur Company dnd has been on the Board of our Company since 13" December, 2010.
He holds Bachelnrs degree in Science {Mechanical Engincering) from Benaras Hindu University and a diploma in Industrial Finance from Indian Institute
of Bankers. Prior to joining our Company he was the Chairman and Managing Director of India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited, Punjab National

Bank, Small Ind ustries Develapment Bank nf India and Punjab and Sind Bank respectively. He was alsa the Chairman of the India Banks Association for twa
terms.

Other Directorships are:

Maharashtra Airpart Development Company Limited
Punjab Infrastructizre Development Board

SME Raling Agency of India Limited

Infrastructure Development Finance Cum pany Limited
Ahluwatia Contracts India Limited

MBL Infrastructures Limited

3 ¥ Creditline Private Limited

SPML Infra Limited

India Infrastructure Finance Company Limited

Modi Rubber Limited

India SME Technolagy Services Limited

el ]

- -
bl
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Brief Profile of Directors of PTC India Financial . -
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Services Limited
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Mr. T. N. Thakur, Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. 't N Thakur, initiator of the concept uf power trading in India,
possesses art expericnce uf over theee decades asa member af the Indian
Audit & Accourts Service. Mr. Thakur holds expertise in Treasury
Management, Financial Management (including Resource Mobilization,
Irvestment decisions and Appraisat of Projects for Project lending),
Accounts, Cash Management, Budgeting and Budgetary Cantrol,
Human Resource Management, It is due to his wide knowledge and
experience that the company has managed to create a positian for itsolf
even in such a short duration,

Mr. Thakur has also served as a Director (Ficance & Financial
Operations), Power Finance Curporation Limited (a Development
Financial Institution for the Pawer Sector in India), New Dethi where
he was responsible fur mubilizing resources for the company for on-
lending to power projucts in the publie sector (both state and central) as
well as in the private sector including captive power plants.

Dr. Ashok Haldia

A member of The Institute of Chartered Accourttartts of India, Institute
of Comparty Secretaries of India , The Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India. Dr. Ashok Haldia has diversified experience
of pruject finaneirng and industrial financing potlicy; publie sector
policy reforms, evaluation and martagement; power sector reform,
restructuring and financing. Before joining on the Board of PFS, Dr.
Haldia was Secretary, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
New Delhii. He has been associated with formulation af accounting &
auditing standards, corporate Jaws and govemance, Isiamic finance,
WTD-GATS, reforms in govemment accounting and related aspects
of public finance. He has been a member uf a number of committees
set up by the Governtment of Rajasthan, the Government of India,
ICAL and other national & internativnal bodies, He was Technical
Advisor on Board of Intemational Federations of Accountarts,
Confederation of Asian Pacific Accountants and Secretary General of
South Asiart Federation nf Accountants. be has contributed a number
of articles in natiural /isternational conferences, professional journals
artd news papers. He has aiso been a faculty member in number of
management training institutiuns. Dr. Ashok Haldia did his doctorate
ort’Privatizatiun of public enterprises in India’

Mr. P Abraham

Mr. P. Abrabam has served as Secretary to the Government uf Iodia
in the Ministry of Power during the first phase of reforms in the
power sector, He holds rich experience in the field of administration
and specificaliy the Power Sectnr. Hackier he was the Chairman of
Maharashtra State Electricity Board (MSEB) and presentiy, he is also a
Director in PTC India Limited

Mrs, Rama Muratj

Mrs. Murali has mere than 35 years of experience. She jotned TA&AS
is July 1973 and retired from service in Mav 2008 She has avorked
as Joant Seeretary. Ministry of Finance m dept of Feapomic Affairs
deating with external aid, privatization of public sector enterprises
and administration and palicy relating ta mdustrial units engaped in
production of curreney and coinage. She alsa waorked as Jobnt Secretary,
Govt. of India and Financial Advisor in the Dept of Scientific amd
Industraal Keseareh, Financial Advisor to the Council el d
Industrial Rescarch, Govt. of lodia where she was in T
and aceounts of the Council. She was alse the fhisg
New Dethi Mumcipal Corpuration with averall
and accounts. She s alsa the bife member of Indiah &
Auditors. \’a}

¥

ok P Uddeph Kohii s ’
-»-Dr.Kohliis anEngineer from the Indian Institute of Technalogy, Roorkee

and holds a Pest-Graduate Diploma in Industrial Administration from
the Manchester University, UK. He obtained his Ph.D. in Economics
from the Delhi School of Econornics. Dr. Kohli was also Chairman and
Managing Director of Power Finance Corporation Limited, and has
worked with the Planning Comnission, Governnent of India, reaching
the pasition of Advisor (Additional Secretary tevel). He has cartied out
intemnational assignments for Asian Development Bank, United Nations
Industrial Development Organization, United Nations Develapment
Pragramme and United Nations Office foc Praject Services. Dr. Kohli's
areas of expertise include development planning, finance, project
formulatian, appraisal, sustainabllity and monitoring, power/energy
planning, Carporate Soclal Responsibility training artd human resource

" developrent.

Mr. Sudhir Kumar

Mr. Kumar, aged 54 years, is an Independent Director of our Company
and has been on the Board of our Company since 22~ March, 2010
He holds a Masters degree in Commerce from the Delhi School uf
Economics, University of Delhi. He is an Indian Ad ministrative Services

officer presently serving as Joint Secretary i Ministry of Power,

Government of India. He has also served as the officer on special duty
to Minister for Railways, Government of India. Presently, he is also on
the Board of our Promoter, PTC India Limited.

Mr. M K Goel

Mr. Goel holds a bachelor's degree in Techmology specializing in
Electrical Engireering from Kanpur University. Mr. Goel has a career
spanning aver 30 years. Before joiming Power Finance Corporation
(PFC), he was working with NHPC. Currently he has been incharge of
Institutional Develapment and Administratiort. He has been involved
in indueting reforms in State Power Ulilities, steering Restructured
Accelerated Power Development & Reform Programme of GO! and
oversees humart resource functioning, information technology and
legal activities

Me. C. R. Muralidharan

In his earlier capacity, Mr. Muralidharan was Whole-Time Mrmber
of IRDA and was locking after the campliance by the insurers of the
regulations on investments, analysis of financial statements of insurance
companies, on and off-site su pervision of insurance eompanics as well
as other regulatory issucs tncluding the registration of new insurance
companies. Prior to joining IRDA, he warked in RBI for more than
three decades in various capacities. He was heading the Department
of Banking Operations and Develupment (DBOIY) uf RBE, which is
responsible for faving duwn a regulatory framework un a wide range
of operations for Indian commercial banks ta promote a sound and
competitive banking system consistent with the emerging international
best practices. He assisted IMF in bwu uverseas assighments and was
associated with several High Level Wurking Gruaps on Banking
Regulation.

Mr. Surinder Singh Kohh

Mr. Kohili, aged 65 vears, is an Independent Director of our Company
and has been on the Board of our Company since 13" Decembur,
2010 He holds Bachelors degree in Science (Mechartical Engrineering)
from Benaras Hindu University and a dipleowa in Industrial Finance
from Indian institute of Baskers. Prior to joining our Company he
was the chaiman and ownaging director of ladia Iafrastructure
Finarice Company Linuted, Punjab Natiunal Hank, Small bndustrios
Development Bank of India and Punjeb and Sind Bank respectivefy. e
was also the ehairmian of the lndia Banks Association for bwo terms



Trear Shareholders,

1. The Directors have

pleasurein presenn'ng'tc you its fifth Annual Report

together with the agdited accounts of your Company for the financlal

vear 2010-11.
OVERVIEW

-

2 Power Scctor in lrdia has recorded capacity additico of 12160 MW

during the year 20]0-11taking, the additional capacity creation during

the Fleventh Five

ear Plan so far to 48029 MW. Tower Sector in

tiw recent years bas been constrained by fuel risk, off-taker risks,
and implementatign risks. The sector, however, continues to offer
tremendous busingss opportunities for investment and provision of
tinancial services apross the value chain, The capacity addition target

fur the Twelfth Fi

o Year Plan would require capital investment of

aroend 1255 Trillign.

3 FPTC India Finaociy
non-deposit taking

| Services Limited (PFS) is a systcmatically importand
NBFC registered with Reserve Baok of India (RBI)

and set-up to devagte iself exclusively for providing fioancial selutions

w0 projerts m the
infrastracture Iing
firancial performd
maintatned rathen
2009-10. The yeq

pricrry value chaim, It has been accorded status of

nce Compaoy (IFC) in August 2010, The operational
nee of the Compaoy during the year 2010-11 has
exceeded growth mumentum than during the year
t also saw successful completion of Initial Public

Offering (10) of the Campany.

FINANCIAL RESULTE

4 Buring the year 2§
Rz L0EE 52 million
% erowth.

10-11, the Company has recarded revesuc income of
tising from Rs.534.90 million, thus recording 103.50

The Bighlights of the Hnancial results are as under

{Rs. itn milhion)

Thart utars

2010-11 209-10
Toar e 1,088 52 534.9[;_
Eapemdiare 57421 167 .59
[*palfit betore tas 51431 3670
Fan Fapeise 14404 11245
Profir aller tax 370.27 25452
Transfer te Satutery Reserve Fund 7410 50,95
Balance wartied to Bptance Sheet 2617 203,57

Operating incore as a percentage of total income increased from 73.91%
o 20 10 10 96.26% in 2010-11. Correspandingly, the operational
eapaenees on o ercentage of total revenue increased from 31397 to

117

P Prrotis Tiefe

anld

e Taw {PBT) has increascd from Rs.367 00 mitlion i
9110t s, 5431 millioo in the vear 2010-11 recording {ncrease by
The (ofit after Tax (PAT) recorded jocrease by 4548 % from

. 23457 mutian in 2009-10 to Rs, 370.27 miltion during the vear 22

OPERATIONAL PHRFORMANCE

PTC India Financial Services Limited
DIRECTOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

of equity of PFS was already committed and disbursed in the oquity
inuestments as at the beginning of the year 2010-11. As a result, thw
amount 4f disbursement of equity during the year 2010-11 was tower
at Rs,890.90 million compared to Rs. 2,309.44 miilico in the previou-
year. The amount of equity sanctioned was Rs.917 mitlion as compared
ta Rs.1043.71 million in the previous year. Equity investment made in
power projects was Rs. 4586.23 million at the end of the financal vear
2010-11 compared to Rs. 370707 million at the end 2009-10. Outstanding
commitments for equity investments as on 31st March 2011 amountind
Rs. 1043.71 million, During the year, the Company has divested its pant
stake jo Indian Energy Exchange Limited. Effective commitments for
sancticosof debt as on 31st March, 2011 were Rs.33,649 nillion increasud
to Rs.18,332 million as on 31st March, 2010. Upfront finaocing of CHI
amounted to Rs. 222,38 million in the year 2B10-11 aa against Rs 5040
million in the year 2009-1D.

7. The mumber of new projects for which financial assistance wa-

sanctioned during the year was 2B taking the total number of sanctioned
projects il 31st Mareh, 2011 to 62. The financial assistance sanctioned
by PFS so far would help capacity creation of more than 14000 4
Fuel wise assisted projects comprised of 20 coal-based thermal projects:
17 biomass-based projects, 5 hydro-based projects. and 4 wind-based
projects.

8. Most of the assisted projects have progressed well compare d with ths

schedule of implementation. 2 biomass projects, 1 wind project have
achieved commercial operations during the year 201-11. Throug!
a comprehensive project monitoring mechanism, PFS, continaousl
monitors status of implementation of assisted projects cn a repabar
basis.

DIVIDEND

9. The Directors have not recommended dividend for the finanuial v
ended 31:t March, 20011,

SHARE CAFITAL

10. During the fioancial year 2010-11, the Compant has completed its Inita)
Public Offer (IPQ) comprising of fresh issue of 127,50HL000 evpuity shaie
{excludiog an offer for sale of 29,200,000 equity shares by Mavguace
India Holdings Limited, » shareholder of the Company) af fare iy
of Rs.10 each for cash at a price of Re28 per share {inchuding « <l
premium of Rs18 per equity share). Dhscount of Red/- per slare
was given to the retail investors. The Company toward: melalesed
Rs.3,527.03 mitiion through PO (excluding the otfer for -aley L
utilizabion for general business purposes (the details of utdleation. e
mentoned in notes to the accourts). The shares or the Company ane
listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Bl 1
paid-up share capital of the Compant! as at 31st March. 2011 avgigenaba!
to Rs.5,620.83 million comprising of 562,083,335 equity <hares of R0
cach fully paid up. PTC India Limited hotds 60% of the paid up caprhal
of the Company as at 31" March, 2011 down frapy 77 ol held as ol F1-t
March, 20400

RESERVES

11, Qutof the profits varned during the financial vear 2005 E the Lamga:
astransforred an amount of Rs 74 10 pullion o Statu oy Resene o

. The amount of debt sanctions during the vear 2040-1, excludigg?
these conyertihie in to tong-term oans, increased to Ry 17,031 oyl
compared to Re12490 miflion i the previous vear Ve lovel aff

disbrureerent g

compared Lo B

meel the prowing requinenents bor disbursennt, aed o
£ dobt was Rs., 623664 mithion durnmg the vear W02

wby optimiwe the borronimg, vast, PER T abapded w e
22708 mitlion in the previous veor. A large portien

el stratepy for resonnoe ebilpation, s uoder




(i) mobilisation of additiona! capital through Initial Public Offer (IPO)
completed in March, 2011.

. fﬂ) Irafsing NCD Series-3 amounting to Ks.900 million subscribed by

Life Insurance Corporation (L1C) in January 2011.

(iif) raising of Rs.420.86 million through Infrastructure Bonds cligible
for tax benefit under Section- 80CCF of Income Tax Act, 1961 in
March2011consequent upon recetving recognitinn as Infrastructure
Finance Company (IFC).

{iv} contracting External Commercial Borrowing (ECB) of aggregate
amount of USD 26 million from DEG Germany. Since FFS is
Infrastructure Finance Cornpany (IFC), ECB has been raised under
the automatic route. Additional ECB of USD 50 milkion was
under advanced stage of finalization with Intemational Finance
Corporation (IFC), The necessary agreements to the effect were
signed after 31st March, 2011.

The total borrowing of the Cnmpany is Rs. 5,698.75 million as on
31st March 2011 as compared to Rs. 310B01 million as on 3]st
March 2010, Continuous and persistent efforts have enabled PFS
to maintain its cost of borrawings despite the rising inlerest rate
scenario in the market.

REALISATION

13

The Company gives utmost priority to the realizstion of the amounts
due towards principal and interest. During the year, PFS recovered
short-term loan of Rs.2,440 million, and interest of Rs. 736.02 millionon
both short-term and fong-term lcans, There was no oubstanding amount
recoverable as on 31st March, 2011, The Company has regularly realized
ali the amounts due from the borrowers during the year and has not
made any additional provision on Loan Assets (non performing) in its
financial staternents upto the vear ended 31st March, 2511 other than the
statutory provisions as mandated by the Reserve Bank of Endia, Du Fing
the year 201011, the Company has created provision for contingencies
against standard assets in its financial staternent amnunting to Rs. 17.77
million, inaceardance RBI Circular No. DNBS.PD.CC.No. 207/ 13.02.002
/2016-11 dated 17th January, 2011,

CREDIT RATINGS

14.

During the financial year ended 314 March, 2011, the lung term bank
borrowings have been rated LA+ by ICRA while our Non Convertible
Debentures have beenrated LA+ by JCRA and BWR A A by Brickwnrk.
The Company’s short term domestic borrowing programme was
awarded the highest rating of * A1+ by ICRA.

HUMAN RESOURCE

15,

Human Resources becomes critical to the rapid growth of your
Company. Broadeningand deepening the human skills and conducive
HR practices have been core to the HR mitiotives, Apart fraom the
campus recruitments being made from the reputed institutions, direct
recruitments have been made for specialised positions, Inorder to keep
pace with the recent trends in the industry, the remuneration structure
in PFS has been revised upward. This shauld tielp in attracting and
retaining the best talent in the industry. Other HRE initiatives taken
include emploves welfare measures, in-house and cut-station training
programmes and promating participative management.

DIRECTORS* RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

16,

In pursuance of Seetion-217 (ZAA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the
Directors make the following statement:

() In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable
accounting standards have been foltowed by PRS along with proper
explanation rlating to material departares;

(i) The Directers have sefocted such Accaunting poboes, and applicd
e consestently, and made judprownts apd estimates that are
reasonable and prudent <o s to give o tror and fair view of the

state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year
2010-11 and of the profit or loss of the Company fnr that period;

(iif) Proper and sufficient care has been taken by the Directors for
Maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance wilh
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1950 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company apd for preventing and detedting frauds and
other irregularities; and

{iv) The Annual Accounts have been prepared An a going concern
basis.

NON-ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC DEPOSIT

17. PFSis a Non- Deposit taking Systemically important NBFC. H has not
accepted any public deposit during the year 2010-11.

CONSERVATIDN DF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION,
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & QUTGO ETC.

18. Since PFS is engaged in investment and tending activities, particulars
relating to conservalion of energy and technolngy absorplion are not
applicable tu it.

The Company has incurred expenditure nf Rs. 21.45 miliian {previous
year Rs. 1.42 million) in foreign cxchange during the vear ended 31st
Mareh, 20111, These included payment of Rs 1545 million as charges/
fee for raising ECB.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLDYEES

19. During the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2011, pa employee
was employed for full or part of the vear and who was in receipt of
remuneration from PFS of more than Rs. 600 million per annum or
Rs.0.5 miltion per month, in aggregate.

AUDITORS

20, M/s. Delnitte Haskins & Sells were appointed as Statutory Auditars »f
the Company for fimancial year 2009-10 by the shareholders and shall
hold office upto the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual Generat
Mueting,

The Auditors have audited the Accounts of the Company for the vear
ended 31st March, 2011, Audited Aecounts together with the Auditor's
Report thereon are annexed to this repnrt.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A detailed repurt on Corporate Guvernance and Management
Discussion & Analysis report, pursuant 1o the requirement of Clause 49
of the Listing Agreement forms part of the Annual Report. A certificate
obtained from the Statutory Auditor of the Company, confirming
compliance of conditions of Corporate Goverrance as stipulated
under the aforesawd Clause 39 is annexed to the Repert an Corperate
Governance

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

22 The Board of [Nrectors acknondedge with deep appreciation the

coaperation received from Minstey of Pawer, Ministre af Finance,
Reserve Bank of India, SEBE, NSE, BSE, PTC India Limited and other
staketolders, [nternational Finange Carporation (iTC), DEG Germany,
vatieos Banks, Consortium Partners and Officials of the Compam.

For amt on behatl of the Board of Uirectors

TN Thakur
Chairman & Managing Director

Date - 24
Place:

kv, X111

b 25

19



REFCORT ON CORPORNTE GOVERNANACE Number of Beard Meeting
Company’s philosophy gn Corporate Governance There were 9 (Nine) Meetings of the Board ot Drrectors held dunng the
Corporate Governance Js to ensure fairness and tramsparency in wll financial year ended 3st March, 01T e one 23sb June 2010, 1910 Taly.
dealings and in the funrifoning of the management. Corpoeate Governanee A 24th September, 2010; 13th October, 2010; $h Novembwa, 2000, 230
is concerned wills the snprals, ethics, values, parameters, cordiet and Decernber, 2010; 74k January, 2011, 141 Sarch, 2011 wed 28 S laeh,
behaviour of the Comparfy and its management. The spirit of gaveraancy al i

PTC India Financial Services Limited (PFS) is derived frant this phitosophy Board Meetings and Attendance:

and has been articulated through the Company’s various policies.

5 HMame [hngiatoen Eoarid . [T
. . . . [ Mreting s g
Being a finance Compahy, PFS has to regularly pursue businesses that i PR
maximise returns while leffectively managing the inherent risks. Decision d“*"“ - March, 2013 :
' . . . - . unng  alterubod el
making and execution is firiven by its governance structure, ethivs and vahue the harenders
systems, Corporate Govefnance ensures transparency and accourtability, The fenmm bbby
H < an T M tkn
presence of strong govegnance standards earns faith of alt the stakeholders 11
which is very essentia} for successfully running any organization and 1 McTN.Thakw 3::;:';""" i 4 b
contributes in a best posible manner in sustaining and enhancing economic Director
growth. Corporate Govprmance also Tas breader social apd iastitotional 2 [ Ashoktlalba  Whole Tiow ! ? ; e
: : . . . sEetor
dimensipns. Properly ddsigned rules of governance focus onimplementing Chiet Finais al
the of fairness e i lit Giticer
values of fairmess, trgnspatency, accountability, and responsibility to all S o ) . N rr .
the stakeholders. Arnitabh Executlue Al aliie
X 3 Lo . N . Jresigned on 23 flinector
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4 pluay } I f ) “ "
on the Corporate Govdrmance is given below as a part of the Director's Jantary. 2007} :1]:::[2’“\“'“'
- s . - . . . H '
Report atong with the Chriificate issued by the Statutory Auditors regarding Direciar)
compliance with the sequircments in regard to Corporate Gevernance 3 MelAbmham M e * * "* ¢ frreen!
specified in Clause 49 of the listing agreement. Director
- R . . {Independent
PES is commitled to achjeve the best standards of the Corpurale Governanec, Dlirector)
- . . - Dr. - 9 R i £ L !
The Company has bullt up a streng foundation for making Corparate b Dadesh Komli - Hon - e ' M
Governance a way of 1§e by having an independent Board with experts of D:"f:fwrnd
| B . . . Lriede et
eminence, forming a cofe team of top level excoutives, inducting competent E,-,mf:,]
professionals acrass the organization and putting m place best systems T Mrs, RamaMurali Non - ] 4 . X0 At
. - Execut
and processcs. Guing Beyond I'FS has endeavoured to regulatory and fegal Torecion
compliances and adopfpractices of high level of business ethics. gfi'dtpef;dfnf
recior,
Bonard of Directors B MLOR Nan - 4 B H st
*uralidharan Eascutive
The Board of Dircctors of PES provide leadershup and strategic guidance, f‘:-m'turnd
- . . . . - N . e enl
objective judpement gnsd exercises coalrol over the Cumpany, whils ‘I]‘;‘n‘:.lp:l‘) "
remaining at all titnes doveuntable to the stakehalders. 9 MM Kot Non- 3 5 5 : Aban
Exevutive
Composition Direchure

As on 315t March, 2011 the Cumpany’s Basrd eamprised af ToiTen) Divectors .
out uf whick & are Tadgpedent Directars. The Compasition of the Board isia WM Shabing Kumar - Han - N ! ¢ N -
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comformity with Clauge 49 of the Listing Agrcement. Theecter
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. . . - 1 M Neil Kane o - Ll s &
Name of Direclor Designation Atura Laulive
. - - — - — . . -— — Irmigmed vn 11* Direaar
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Fiaancial Offa e Deember, 2010 Dhnecter
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. BT Sarnmnded Singh Kol N - Execative Addilional
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Detail oof shareholding of Directors as on 31st March, 2011 are as under

5r.No.  Name of the Director Nn of shares
1. e T. N, Thakur 7000
2. B2r. Uddesh Kohli 3500

Infarmation available to the Board

Detailed Agenda Notes with information as enumerated in the Listing
Agreement were circulated in advante to the Board. All the relevant
information as mentioned in dause 49 uf the Listing Agreement have been
ptaced before the Board for its cunsideration, The infurmatinn regularty
supplied to the Brard / Buard Committecs specificaliv includes:

. Anfual budgets and any updates therein.

Agenda Notes for financing of varinus long term and short term
prrevjucks,

* Quarterly results for the Company,
Annual Financial Staternents nf the Crmpany

* Minules pf meetings of Audit Comunittee and other Cammittess of the
foard.

* Any material default in financial obligations to and by the Company or
substantial nam-payment for services provided by the Company.

Any issue, which invndves jossible publie or product liahility claims of
substantial nature, if any.

*  Details of any juint venture or collaboration agreement,

Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by

management to limit the risks of adverse exchange rate movement, if
matertal,

*  Noncompliance of any regulatory, statutory nature or lisking
requirements and shareholders service.

*  Dther materially important information.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors after Listing of Shares of PFS, in its meeting held
nn 25th May, 2011 has adnpted Cnde of Conduet for Board Members and
Senior Management Persnnnel. The code is a comprehensive eade applicable
tes al) Directors and Menybers of Semior Management of the Company. It is
in alignment with Company’s vision and values to arhieve the Misston
and Objertives and aims at enhancing ethical and transparent process in
managing the affairs of the Conspany. A copy of the Code has been put an
the website of the Company i.e. www.ptcfinancial.com,

Code fnr Frevention of Insider Trading

In terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; 1the Company has formulated a comprehensive Code for
Prevention of Insider Tradwug to preserve the confidentiality and tn prevent
mswse of unpublished price sensitive information, Every Director, officer
aod dessgnated emplnvee nf the Company has a duty to safeguard the
venfidentiality of alk such information ohtained in the course of his nr her
work at the Company ond not b misuse his nr her position or informatum
regarding the Cumpans to gain persunal benefit or to provide benefit t any
third party. The code lays down guidelines and procedures to be followed
and disclasures tu be made white deating with the shares of the Company
and the consequences of non-com pliance. The Company Secretary has beert
spposnted as Compltance Officer and o responsible for adherence fu *Code
ror Prevention of Insider Trading . In line with the reguirement of Code fur
Prevention of Insider Traling, trading window was clused from time to
time, whenever sume price sensitive infronatinn was submitted to the Board
and other Comnuttees of Direvtors Notice of closure of trading window was
timand to ot the emplovees well indvance, restraining all the empluyees not
e ddeal Lo the shures of the Cunpany when the window is closed.

‘j .

k1Y

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board functions cither as a full Board or through varicus committees
constituted 1o oversee specific operational areas, The Board of Directors and
its committees meet at regular intervals.,

As on 31st Mareh, 2011 the Board had ten (10} committees:

13 Audit Committee

2} Nomination Committee

3} Remuneration Committes

4} Shareholders’ & [nvestors” Grievance Committee
5)  Compensation committee for ESOP

6)  Asset Liability Management Committee
7} Risk Management Committee

By Cnmmittee of Directors for IPQ

9}  Committee of Dircctors for Bond issuance
107 Cornmittee of Ditectors

1. Audit Committee

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee is in line with the

requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement read with Section 292A
of the Companies Act, 1956.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes the following:
The powers of the audit cornmittee include the followi ng:

1 Toinvestigate any activity within its terms of reference

2. To seek infurmation from any employee.

3 Toobtain cutside legal or other professional advice.

4 Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers
I"IC‘EESSEI')?.

The rirte of the Audit Committee includes the following:

¥ Oversight of the Company’s financial repatting process and the
disclosure of itz financial information to ensure that the financiaj
statermnent is enrrect, sufficient and credible.

2. Recummending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if
required, the replacement or removal of the statutory auditor and the
fixation of audit fees,

3. Approval of pavment to statutory auditors for any other services
rendered by the statutory auditors,

4

Reviewing with the management the annual financial statements before
submission to the Brard for approval, with particular reference to:

a. Matters required tn be included in the Director's Responsibility
Statement tu be included in the Board's teport in terms of clause

{2M} of section 217 of the Companies Act. 1956.

b Changes, if any. In arcounting policies and practices and reasons

for the same

¢ Muyor accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise
af judgment by management

sipnificant adjustments made in the financial statements arising
vut uf audit findings )
e.  Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to
financial statements.
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2. Nomination Committee

The Board originally constituted Nomination cum Remuneration Committee
on 5th August, 2008 and subsequently renamed it to iis present name on 13th
December, 2010, It has been constituled for the purpose of ensuring 'fit and
proper’ status of proposed/ existing Directors of the Company in terms of
RBI guidelines. During the last year no meeting of the committee was held.
The Committee comprises of the follnwing members:

Name of the Directors Designation
Mr. T. N. Thakur Chairman
Mr. P. Abraham Member

Dr. Uddesh Kohli * Member

Mr. 5.6, Kohli * Member

* Appuointed as member on 25th May, 201t
3. Compensation Committee for ESOP

The Compensation Committee for ESOP was constituted by the Board on
29th April, 2008, it has been constituted far the purphise of preparing and
managing an ESOP scheme for the Coingpany. During the vear, nn mectings
of the Compensation committee for ESOF were Lield.

The Committee comprises 0f the folnwing members:

ASCUTTT ANy are

12 Totsoak s the

p ol oo

Feasam Tor subatantis] defaodts in the payinent to the

Name of the Directors Destgnation®
Mr. T. N. Thakur Mermmber
Mr. & 8 Kohli Member
Dr. Uddesh Kohli Member

dupesiturs, deboture holders, sharcholders tin case of non-payment of

declared dividengi=: and creditors,

13, Berevins the fuRctoniss of the Winsthe Bloswer pwchuanism, i case the
LA T N

13, Uarmonng oot apy other fswlions whl may bre specified under
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The Canimittee = chdired by Mrs Rama Murali, independent Director wee f.
Uiy November, 2001 [The Composition of Audit Committes as at 315t March
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*The members shali apprint a chairman from amongst themselves,
4. Asset Liability Management Committee

‘The Asset Liability Management Coinmitiee was originally conslituted
pursuant tn Board resolution dated 30th March, 2009. 1t has been constiluted
for the purpase of perforning funchions as reyuired under the asset Hability
managetnent policy and comprises of the following members:

Name of the Directors Designation
Mr. T. N, Thakur Chairman
Mr. P. Abraham Meoiber
Dr. Ashok Haldia Member
Mr. C.&. Muralidharan * Membwr

* Appointed as member op 25th Mav, 201

The scope of Asset Liabihty Management Cummitlee includes nurket nsh
management and it shall specifivatly focus on interest rate rish, foreign
exchangu risk, and liquidity rish.

Puring the year, 3 meetings of Asset Liability Management Commitiee were
held on 2tst June, 2010; 23th September, 2010 and 3ist March, 2011,

5. Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Commviliee was constituted by Board on 7th July.
2009, It has been constituted uncler Risk Management Policy of the Company
for the purpose of reviewing risk management in relation to various rishs,
markel risk, eredit rizk, and operational risk and comprises af the
embers:

-qd\
N@fﬁg O\ﬁl\ Directors

t

Designation

Chainman

Stember




During the year, 3 meetings of Risk Management Committee were held on
21st June, 2010; 24th September, 2010 and 29th Mareh, 2011. :

6. Sharcholders’/Investors’ Grievanee Commitiee

The Sharcholders’ and Investor’ Grievance Committee was constituted by
Board on 13th December, 2010, The Sharcholders” and Investors’
Grievance Committee presently comprises of tie foilowing members:

Name of the Directors Degignation*
Dr. Uddesh Knhti Member
Dr. Ashok Haldia Member
Mr. C.R. Muratidhatan .Mernixler

“The members shail appoint a chairiman from amongst themscives,

Scope and terms of reference:

The Committee has the powers to promptly resotve the complalnts of
shareholders’/ investors auch as non-receipt of shares after ransfer, nan-
receipt of dectared dividends, non-receipt of batanre sheet and other related
types of complaints/ queries.

Shares were allotted to the public under the Intiat Public Offer of the
Company on 26th Mareh, 2011 therefore, during the year, no meeting of
Shareholders’ and Investor’ Grievance Committee was held.

During the year ended, the Company has not received any complaints from
the investors,

7. Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was constituted pursuant ¢ Board resolution
dated 13th December, 2010. [t presently comprises of the following -

members:
Name of the Directors Designation  Attendance in the meeting
Mr. P. Abraham Chairman Present
Mrs. Rama Murali Member Absent
Dr. Uddesh Kohli Member Present

During the year, 1 meeting of Remuneration Committee was held 11th
March, 2011,

Scope and terms of referenee:

The scope and terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in
lirw with the listing agreement, provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
any guidelines / rirculars issued by Reserve Bank of India and nclude
determining on behaif of the Board and the shareholders of the Compaiy,
the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive
directors including pension rights and any compensation payinent.

8. Cormittee of Directars for IPO

The Cornittee of Directors for [PQ {IPO Conumittee) was constituted
pursuantto Board resolution dated 22nd March, 2010 for taking the necessary

steps for IPO and pre-IPO private placement. 1t comprised of the following
menbers:

Name of the Directors Designatign

Mr. 1. N. Thakur Chairman

PF¢

o
e

During the year, 9 meetings of Committee of Directors for [PO were held
20th April, 2010;" 2th June, 2010; 7th September, 2010; 18th December, 2010;
5th March, 2011; 11th March, 2011; 15th Msreh, 2011; 21th March, 2011 and
26th March, 2011.

9. Committee of Directors for Issuance of Bonds

The Committee of Directors for issuance of Bonds was originally constimuted
by Board on 21st August, 2009, It has been constituted for taking the necessary
decision felated to raising the fund through Bond and other similar purposye
of considering and detetmining the terms and conditions of issuance and
aliotthénts 'of -se¢ured- non-convertible debentures and comprises of the
follawing members:- :

Name of the Directors

Designation
Mr. T. N. Thakur Chairman
Dr. Ashok Haldia Member
Dr, Uddesh Kohli Member

During the year, 3 meetings of Committee of Directors for issuance of Bonds
were held 19th November, 2010; 27th January, 2011 and 31st March, 2011,

10. Committee of Directors

The Committee of Directors was constihzted by Board on 21st August, 2009,
[t has been eonstituted for the purpose of considering and sanctioning debt
financing or equity participation or both laken together to a single Cnmpany
upto Rs.250 millien, subject to an aggregate limit of overall limit by
Rs.1,000 miilion in a Financia) Year. [t presently comprises of the foliowing
members:

Name of the Directors Designation
Mr. T. N. Thakur Chairman
Dr. Ashok Haldja Member

Dr. 1lddesh Kohli Member

During the year, 3 meetings of Committee of Dirertors were hetd 31st May,
2010; 29th September, 2010 and 1st March, 2011,

Annual General Meeting

The details of the last three Annual General Meetin

as under:

gs of the Company are

AGM Date

ah AGM 24/08/200@ Friday

Time Locetion

500 Phd

Board  Room,  2nd
Floor, NBCC Towers,
15, Bhikay Cama [Macye,
New Dthe.

Special Resulutivn
Further issue ut Bquiiy
Shares {Section B1{1 A}
of the Cotipanies At
1950

Ard AGM 257007200 Friday SMPM Board  Keom, 2 Mo
Floor, NBLUC Tawers,
35, Blukaji Cama Place,
Mew Delhi

2nd ACM 115708/ 2008 Tuesday 53 EM Board  Rooin,  Ind Nine

Floor, NBUC Towots,
15, Bhikap Cama Place,
New Dvlhi.

Subsidiary Companies

The Company dues not have any subsidiary company .

Disclosures
U Ashok Faldia Membaer .
. © (1) There were no materially significant transactions with refated parties
Mr. P Abraham . Member T

Dr. Uddesh Kohli

#
(O
A
anlwr'M

se. promoters, directors or the management. contliving with the
Tdmpany's interest, subsidiaries or relatives ote, that may have any

ytfatial conflict with the interest of the Company. Forther, the details
! MAN %g;iatcd party transactions are presented .in Note no 7 on Schedule 19
: '\ﬁples to Accounts” to Atnual Aceounts in the Annual Report.
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(21 Tihase were also noigstances of non-compliance on any rmatter retated to
the Capilat Markets gluring the last three years, Thete were no penalties
jnpassd er stricturps passed against the Company by Hre statulury

authotities i this refard,

3 The Company's WH
Redressal wlirh ded
grievances of the ¢
affirms that no p
connmittee.

istle Biower pulicy is inbuilt systers of Gricvanee
Is with gricvances of employees. Under this system
nplmyces are redressed effectively. The Company
prauninet have been denied acecss tn the audit
it The Company has fully complied witls all the mandatory requirernents
Flouse 49 nf the Listing Agreement of the stock
exchange relating, th Corporate Governante and adopted all suggested
items 1o be incdudedl in the Repurt nn Corporate Governanee.

prescribed wiuder

in tiw proparanan b financial statements, the Company has follmwed
ciples in india, the applicable acconnting standards
on 213(3C) of the Companics Act, 1956, the relevant

oinpanies Act, 1956 and the Nun- Banking financial

the avcaunting o
netifivd under secy
pravisions nf the C
(Nor Deposit Acgepting o Hobding) Companies prudential Nuris
{Reserve Bank] Pigechions, 2007,

flemuneratinn (o Ploegior

The reinsseration paid

enced 31st March, 2011

1 the Whole-time Directors during the financial year
ix as undet:

{Ra. i Lacs)

Name of Dizector Salagy aod Ferquisites Contribution Commissinn  Tolal ESuy
allovfances to provident
fund
[ Asnek §lablia AR 53 205 MNit 4516 il
Means of Communirdtian

PES pecogiizes comofurscation as a key clement nf the overail Curparate

Gowernance framewaofk and therefnre emphasizes enntinuous, cfficient and
celevant commuricaten k1 all external constitaencies. Quarterly/onnual
pually published in finanrial and national newspapers
¢ Business Express in English and fansatta in Hindi
ailalie on the website uf the Company, viz. www.

financial resulls are u
fike Financiai Expresy
The samme &re il a
ptefinascisloom arud|fave alse been subnutled o stock exchanpes as per
requirement The Company alko communicates with its institutional

sharehalders threug i investor vanferences.

All imporiant inforngaien perlaining o the Company is alse mentioned in
the Annuel Repart o the Cospany containing inter-alia audited financial
statements, consoludfted finaneial statensents, direclors’ repott, auditors’
repuort, Teport on carperagy pevernanee which is cireulated to the memboers

amd ot erinaded thezesa for each Financial Year .
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The Baard of Ereviuns o vous ©ompatty b el recoarterided any

Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL
and the totat issued and Jistext capital, The secretarial audit report contirms
that the total issued / paid-up capital is in agreement with the ntal number
of shares in physical form and the tntal nu mber nf dematerialized shares
held with NSDL and CII5L.

CED/CFO certification

As required by the revised Clavse 43 of the Listing Agreemuent, the Certifeate
duly signed by Mr. T.N. Thakur, Chairman & Managing Director and Dr
Ashok Haldia, Directrs & CFO was placed before the Board of Directors at
the meeting held on 25th May, 2041,

Utilisation of proceeds from Initial Public Offering (IPO)

The details of utilisatinn of procecds from 10 upte 317 March, 2051 -
presented in Note no 16 (C) on Sehedule 19 Notes to Accouris” to Annuad
Accnunts in the Annual Report,

OCutstanding  GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants  or  any  vam ertible  mstraments,
conversion date and likely impact on wquity Nu GDRs/fADLs/ Warrants o
any Convertible instruments has been issued by the Company, eacept grant
of ESOPs as mentiuned in Note no 4 on Schedule 19 - "Notes to Aceounts” b
Annual Accounts in the Anaual Report.

Shareholders Informatinn

1)  Apnnuat General Mceling
Date 28092014 Tiene 1530 AM
Vonue: Dr. Sarvepall Radhakrishanan Auditorium  at Kendmoa
Vidyalaya No. 2, ATS. Colony (1eihi-Gurgaon Raad), Delhi Camt.
New Dethi- 110010
2y Financial calendar fur year ended 31st March, 2011
Particutars Dlate

Lot Agei 2010 to Alst March 2011

Kt applicalie sinve the Company was
fisted woef, 30" March . 2011,

230 May, 2011

Financial yoar
Un-audited  finanoial results
for the first three quarters

Annuat Finanrial vear results

3)  Tentative Financial ralendar lor year ending 31st March, 2012

Particulars Date
Us-audited Anancial results o the Wil be anmoanced and published
figst three quarters weitbun 45 ehres trom the eod of cact

wprtarter

Annual Financiaf vear results Will be anonotneed and puldished
withm 60 davs from the end ot cach

financial vear

4) Date of Book Closure
The Repgister of AMomwbers

remain closed Fromy 177 September, 2L o 287 September, 200 1 et

ted St Transter Books of the Campram weld

of both davs,
Payment of Dividend

Ao

fore the Financial vear ended dst daech, 200
6)

PG shares are St on e tallos g anm bl

Listing on Stock Eschanges
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National Steck T hanoe ol 1 isembay sk e hange Banatesd

lodia Linmted .

rip Cade PES [N

Stack Coder INLRelibet i

The anmual Tistng loes or e . it Teat i Bl Aarch 2000 B

been paisd o Nl and il

e



-7) - Market Price Data

Pf

Fax: +91 40 23311968

Website: wivae,

NSE karvycompatershare com
For N tible Debentures Series - T, IT & 111
Month High(Rs.) Lo {15 Closing{Rs.) or Non-Convertible Debentures Serics
March, 211 27.00 23.50 2465 | MOS Limited
BSE 5ri Venkatesh Bhavan
W40, Okhia Industrial Area Phase 11,
Month High{is.) Fow(Rs.) Closing(Rs.) New Dethi
March, 2011 28.00 23.54 24.60) Tel No. 011 - 41406149
*The Compzmy was Hsted on 30th March, 2011, Fax No. 011 ~ 41709881
8) Performance in comparison to indices 1) Distribution of shareholding
PFS Share Price & Nifty *  Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March, 201
B e 9500 S. No. Category No.of  %of Cascs Amount % of
25— ——— . L. R Cases Amount
- 19450 -
2l A i 1.5000 12853 4455 RLEO235R0 080
o L 19400 2 5000 - 10000 5,348 1854 49,152 Sp1) ET
2. 23 - x
T w - [ 5 " |
=€ 51 e e assp 2 3 1000720000 3,921 1359 6593 E90 £17
frigf= W -
o —_— - s 4 20001-30000 1118 kR 249,751 020 053
2 e " 19300 !
L 5 30001-40000 2764 958 U8 METH0 .74
- 192
W - S0 [ 400 1- 50000 290 REH] F3.884.000 025
18 + — e o — 1 18200 7 50001-100000 2,372 22 163,758,350 291
0-03-2011 31-03-2011 PFS 8 100001 & 182 0.63 5,155,413,230 91.72
Above
Date - —Sensex
Taotal: 28,848 100.60 5,620,833,350 100.00
: PFS Share Priec & Sensex *  Shareholding pattern as on 31st March, 20H
26 T——-— : 5900
25 spmmen e _I: 5800 5. Description No.of Total Shares % Equity
TTTT——— - 5700 No Cases
g 244 ———7 5600 1 Promoters 7 328N 60.00
EE 93 1 - 5500 2 Banks 5 20,745010 3.69
pe -0 Z . . S
b= 3 Clearing members 281 10,553,784 1.48
22 - T T —— ——— 5300 )
5200 4 Foreign institutional LU R VIY 1R 19.22
21— I investors
[ 8100 HUF 95 2217000 0.39
5 ! 221200 .
0+ | som '
30-03-2011 31.03-2011 6 Insurance companics 2 15,340,277 273
- NSE 7 Bodies corporates A0 15,711,150 2480
Date . PFs & Mutual funds 4 73344570 132
9 INonresidents 243 D350 011
10 Resident individuals 27.551 +1, 185,305 7.86
91 Registrar and Transfer Agents \ Total: 28 847. 562,083 335 100.00
A S : st gt M
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}11} Dematerialization of shares

Nutnber of shares held in dematerialized and physical mode as on 31st
March, 2011

5. Mo Category No. of cases Total Slurc.-a' u_ﬂ;) Equity

1 Physical B s aoa

2 NSDL 19,444 ESRRARCL 62N,

3 cpsL ERH 7250, 2y X i
Total BB 62,0833

100.00%
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milben in the previeus vear, Stmilarly, the amount of equity sanctioned
was Re 917 million compard 1o Rs.1279 million in the previous year.
Effectivie commitments for debt as on 3lst March, 2011 were Rs.33,049
millinn as comparcd ta Bx. 18,332 million as on 3 st March 20, Uplront
braacing of CER anouated ko Rs.22238 million io the year 2000:11 as
against Ra 5000 millioa in the yrar 2008141

The number of new profects for which fi nanvial assistance was
sanchioned during the year was 211 toking the tetal number of sanctivned
Projects Gl 315t March, 2001 61 62, The financial assistance sanctioned
by PFS ae far wauld help capacity vreation of more than 14000 MW
Fuel wise assisted projects camprised of 20 voal-based thermal projects,
I7 biomass-based projecis, 5 hyures-based projects, and 4 wind-based
prijjects.

The partfolic mix of PFS | undergone sigrificant changes and
togically so. Starting withh focus on vquity investment, PFS praduated
tee fieancing of debt - shat tera as woll as fang term. As an 3tstMarch,
2L short term boans ronstituted sipniticant portion of wital outstanding
delrt: more thas 60, of the kaa vutstanding. The percentage, bowever,
redused with the faog term loans getting ripe far disbursement as the
sanctioned prajects progressed in implenentation stages. In the vearsia
come, a largs portion of the Jebt sutstanding may continue to comprise
of fong term loans.

Risk Management

8.

Risk management is a central part af PFS’ strategic management, Beinyg
a financial institution, I'FS is exposed to risks that are p.irticuiar to its
lending and investrent activities s the eivironmuent withip which it
opefates, PFS’ goat in risk management is to ensure that itunderstands,
measures and monitors various risks that arise and that the organtzation
2dheres to the policies and procedures which arc established to address
these risks.

PIS has, along with iCR A Management Cansulting Services, developed
vanious policies, guidelines for risk management. A software based
Credit Rating Modd ta facilitale internal rating based approach for
rating of borrowers apd projects was also developed, PFS is following
standard processes and procedurss for it various activities. A risk based
internal audit function is undertaken by an independent external party
to validate the implementation «of the various policies and procedures,

Risk Organisation

Credit Risk Management Policy: - Credit risk management policy
provides for identification and assessment of credit risk, asseastment
and management of portfolio credit risk, and risk monitoring and
control. The issucs relating to the establishment of exposure limits for
various categorics, for example, based on geographical regions, fuel,
industry wise, rating wise are also covered, The policy also deals with
rating models aiming at high quality, consistency and uniformity in the
appraisal of proposais.

Asset Liability Management Policy:- The objectives of Asset Liability
Management Policy are to align market risk management with overall
strategic objuctives, articulate current interest rate view and determine
pricing, mix and maturity profile of assets and liabilities, The asset
liability management policy involves preparation and analysis of
liquidity gap reports and cnsuring preventive and corrective measures.
it also addresses the interest rate risk by providing for dusation gap
analysis and control by providing limits to the gaps.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management FPolicy: - The policy covers the
management of foreign exchange risk related to existing and future
foreign currency loans or any other foreign exchange risks derived
from borrowing and lending. The objective of the policy is to serve as
a guideline for transactions to be undertaken for hedging of foreign
exchange related risks. It also provides guiding parameters within
which the Asset Liability Management Commitiee can take decisions
for managing the above mentioned risks,

Interest Rate Policy: - Interest rate policy provides for risk based pricing
of the debt financing by us, It provides the basis of pricing the debt and
the manner in which it can be structured to manage credit risk, interest
rate risk and liquidity risk, while remaining competitive.

Policy for investment of Surplus Funds: - The policy of ihvestment of
surplus funds i.e. treasury policy provides the framework for managing
investment of surplus funds. Realizing that the purpose of mobilization
of resources in our Company is to finance equity as weli as loans to
pawer sector projects, the prime focus is 1o deploy surplus funds with a
view to ensure that capital of PFS is not eroded and that surplus funds
2arn optimal returms.

Qperational Risk Management Policy:- Theopera tionalrisk managemcnt
policy recognizes the need to understand the operational risks in
general, and those in specific activities of the Company. Operational
risk management is not understood as a Process of eliminating such risk
but asa systematic approach to manage such risk. It seeks to standardize

10 Though the Buard has the overalt responsibility of risk management, the process ofidenllif.yil‘!g new risks and designinglappfopriéfle controls
there are two commitlees of the Board which take care of Mmanaging for these rlisks. frinimize losses and custimer dissatisfaction due to
overall risk i the orgamization. la accordance of B guidelines to possible failure in processes.
vaable NBFCs w0 adopr best Practees amd preater FARSPATENCY 13 Apart from these rulicies there are various guidelines to heipunderstand
their aperattans, the Board of Dircetors of PRS has constituted a Risk aad mitnzate different kinds of ather risks, These include, guidelines for
Management Commitlee 0 review risk management in relation o finanecing bismass projects, suidelines for financing CERs, operational
varwus eeke oamely, market risk, credid risk, ol operational risk, and gridelines far debt financing, KYC Guidelines and the like,
an .f\*a};t?‘t [_mb:ln'\‘.M.‘im};v:m-m 4 <.\:1umttc_v...-\.\as.et I.IIJL‘I]Il_\' Managenment Credit Risk Rating Model
Coanmittee FALCOY takes vare of the lequbdity risk, joterest rate resk and
foreign carrency risk whie sk Management Committee ooks after 13, Prs had appuinted ICIRA Management Consulting Services Limited
the overall risk of the argantrdiien with specific focas oo credit righ HMaCs) e develup internal rating software. Though [MaCS had the
and eperational fisk. B0 assescaeat of risk of credit proposals, 7FS standard power project owdel, TS team bas customized the rating
fotlows a araltiple faver approact Che credic apprival aote prepored madel vang sty domain expertise. All the proposals are rated on the
by apprasal oificers and the inkernal retiog assigned to o proposal is rating maodet. There are separate rating models for balance sheet
reviewed w ao independoat risk management team. The rating as well fundiog aod Sy funding. The Madel is an expert judgment model
s approval note s furthee tevicwad by whabe time dircctors before where vach praposal ts evaluated on more thon 100 parameters to arrive
presentazin b the approviag authority. PFS nas engaged well known ataraleeg: ~cure. The mode] has 5 rating grades out of which only first
and exptrenced vansulbing ferms tosuppart i the developowent of Risl Fare tvestmicat grade. The mberest tate offered o borrower is also
Mamgereat Framewerk as well ae ke provide contmunus arppart for - 2 dependent or the rating score, ‘.

Frllowing sound risk muanayement Practices., i LI .
P rink Mechanism
Risk Management Poiiries ffq/ LoNa —_ " . P “hani
Fo nyeneor the huded prajocts, there is a robust monitoring mechanism
M PEShas putio place avom prehenive pulicy fraptework for ma nagel t ot ':”_P{“'- There are separate teams for monitaring of equity and of

of rishs e policies melydoe L debfprowects Whike maditoring of equity investents is carried owt by
: e
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Cautionary Note

lirnitation: on import of coal, delays in land acquisition and oblaining
clearances. Many of the projects have faced problems in timety financial
closure and project implementation. These factors may have impaet
on slowing down the implementation of private power projects and
consequentty credit off-take,

Macro level issues relating to the health of the distribution companics
and the availability of coal may require intervention at the jevel of
Coverament of India, various State Governments and regulators. IS
seeks to address these and other implementation risks, by remainng
cautious during due-diligence process.

Linkages with PTC would continue to help PFS in easy access L
pipeline of projects for financing and te domain expertise of PTC in
power sector. This apart, PFS has developed strong linkages with the
banks, financial inslitution, projeet developers, multilateral, bilateral
instilutions, equity funds, and the ke, which would help in further
development of business. RS has put in plaee 2 eomprehensive risk
management framework and is continuously working to upscale the
same to match the organizational and operational growth.

PFS is not only a mult -product company but is alse highly customer-
focused. PFSapplies a distinetive approach in structuring the financial
produets. Being customer-fucused, emphasis is on understanding
the risks and mitigation measures reguired in the context ot the specifiv
needs of the project.  Ensuring quably in servicing while financing
prwer projects is the hall-mark of PFS's business strategy. operational
framework and HR practiees.

PFS has enhanced its foeas on rencwable energy as these projects dowes
not have significant fuet and envirmmental clearance risks, and receive
fiscal and non-fiscal support. 1t has also slarted focusing
on newer areas in the energy value chain including financing tor
equipment marn

working capital needs. PES has started exploting opportunilies far
portfolio take-over as vatious commercial bamks are exhausting their
exposure limits for the pawer sector, and buy-cut financing.

ufacturing, EPC conteacts in transmission sector, and

73, Certain statements in the “Management Discussion and analvsis”

section may be forward looking and are stated as required by apphivable
laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the actual results, winh
could be different from what the Management envisages @ terms ol
future performance and nutlauk,

LR
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON THE COMPLIANCE OF cqgnmpng,qgco}tgpp&mqummcz UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING
AGREEMENT gy o reseg )

T L
TD THE MEMBERS OF PTC INDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions af Corparate Governance by PTC india Financial Services Limited for the year ended on March 31, 2001, o
stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock Exchanges,

The compliance af conditions of Corporate Governance is the respansibility of the management. Our examination was limited to procedures amd

implementatian thereof, adapted by the Campany for ensuring the campiiance of the conditlans of Corporate Governance, It is neither an audit nor an
expressian of opinion on the financiai atatements of the Company.

in our apinion and ta the best af aur infarmation and accarding to the explanatians given to us, we certify lhat the Company has camplied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above menﬁoned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliarce is neither an assurance as ta the future vtablllty of the Company nor the efficiency or effectivencss withy which the
management has canducted the affairs of the Company.

Far Dejoitte Haskins & Seils

Charlered Accauntanls
{Registration No 5125N)

Jaideep Bhargava
Partrer
{Membership No. (0(1295)

Date: 29th July, 2011
Place: Gurgaan

To
The Board of Directars
PTC India Finarcial Services Limited

a.  We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement far the year ended 31% March, 2011 and that to the best of cur knowledge and
belief:

»  These staternents do not contain any materiaily untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain stétements that might be misteading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Companies affairs and are in compliance with existing accoenting standards,
applicable law and regulations;

b. There are, ta the best of our knowledge and beiiefs, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year 2010-11 which are fraudulent, Hiegat
or violative af the Company’s Code of Conduct;

¢.  We acceplt responsibility far estabiishing and maintaining intemal control and that we have evaloated the effcctiveness of internal contral system of the
Company and we have discloscd to the auditors and audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control system (it any), of
which we are aware and the steps we have taken or purpose to lake to ractify these deficiencies.

d.  We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee-

i Significant changes in intemal controf during the year.
i, Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statemoents, and
iii.  Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if anv, of the management or an emploves have

significan role in the company’s internal control systems.

adf- sadf-
(Dr. Ashok Haldia) (TN, Thakur)
Dircctor & CFO WD

Date: 25th July, 2011
Place: New Delhi




1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of PTC India Financial
Servives Limited | the Company™) as at March 31, 2011, the Profit and
Loss Accountand the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year
ended on that dage, both annexed thereto. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s Management. Qur responsibility is
to express an opihion on these financial statements based on our audit,

r

We conducted ot audit in accordance with the auditing standards
generally acceptgd in India. Those Standards require that we plan
and perfurm the|audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial staemments are free of material misstaternents. An audit
includes examingng, on a test basis, evidence supporling the amounts
and the disclosuges in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the acgounting principles used and the significant ostimates
wiade by the Mapagement, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presergatinn. We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opision.

3. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 issued by
the Central Govgmment in terms of Section 227{(44) of the Companics
Aet, 1926, we ehelose in the Annexure a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Crder.

4. Further tn our ¢

pmments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3
above, we repor

as follows:

{4)  we have obtained all the information and explanations which
to the bestlof our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

purposes of our audit;

(b} in our opinion, proper books of account as tequired by faw
have been fkept by the Company so far as it appears from cur
cxarminatioan of those books;

i) the Balancg Shect, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books nf ageount;

Haviag regard to the nature ni' the Company’s business/ activities during
nd (xiii} of Companies {Auditor's Report] Grder, 2003
s the Order) are not applicable.

the vear, clauses (i
hereinafter referred

i Inrespect of its fised assets:

o' The Comphaay bas maintained proper records showwing full
particulacs, imelnding quantitative detads and situation of the fived
ansets

it Ihe fixed apsels wore physicallv verificd during the vear by the
Managemeptinaccordancewitharegular programme of verfication
which, in olir epinion, prmvides for phvsical verification of alt the
at reasonable intervals. According to the mformation
anons given ta us no materiad diserepancwes were
uch verification,

fixed assot:
and explat
neticed on

401 The fised agsets dispused off during the vear, inour opsnion, ¢

status of the Convpany.

PTC Indié Financial Services Limited
AUDITOR’S REPORT

{d) in our apininn, the Balanee Shect, the Profit and Loss Acceunt
and the Cash Flaw Statement dealt with v this report are in
compliance with the Accounting Standards referred 10 in Sectioa
211(3C) of the Companivs Act, 195h;

{e) inouropinionand to the best of cur information and according 1o
the explanations given o us, the said accounts give the information
required by the Companics Act, 1956 in the muanner so requred
and give a true and fair view in canformity with the accounting,
principles generally accepted in India:

(1) in the case of the Balaace Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at Marnch 31, 2011;

{1} in the case nf the Profit and Foss Account, of the profit of the
Cuompany for the vear ended on that date and

{iil} in the case of the Cash Flow Stateawns, of the cash fawe o
the Company far the vear ended on that dae.

5. On the basis of the written representations recoived froms the Dioschors

as on March 31, 2011 and taken o recoed by the Board of Dirveters,
none of the Directors is Dsquolified as on March 31, 2011 frum besiy:
appointed as a director in terms of Sectinn 274{1a} of the Compantes

Act, 1956, ~
For Dheluitte Hasking & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Registratin No. 0151258
Jaideep Bhargava
Date : 25th May, 201 I'artner

Mlace Gurgaon {Membership No. 0902495

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 3 of our report of even datu

(it The Company hus veshor granied nor faken am Loans, secured o
unsecured, o/ from vompanies. dirms ar other partivs Lswd o e
Repgister maintained under Sectuns 3 of the Lirmpranies Ack, 45

G

Inour epiniaa and according ko B asdernyatioen amnd erplanauens oy

to us, there i an adequake snteenal contral cosbom Cannmensarate with
the size af the Company and the natore of it bosiness s repnard
to pureliises of fived assets and tae sale of pacds and services, There
are na purchases of ventore during e vear, Tririsngs the coumse o
our audit, we have ok abserved any mapn weshiess ia sweh internal
cantral svstem.

vy Accarding 1o the intoermution and ovplanatioe. a1vety b s, there e
nu coracts, arrangements or faesactions ot were requaned b b
entered in the register nutaoied i pursuance o sectivn 30 of the
Companies Act, 1950,

Avcording to the informatenand cyplananonsven tous, the Comipany

has not acvepted ans deposast tram e pukslae durisg the vear,
<.
fE R our opinive, the mteria audil oot cartied cut Juring the vear
e



by a firm of Chartered Accountants appointed by the management have
been commensurate with the size nf the Company and the nature of its
business,

{vii) We have broadly reviewed the bucks of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the fules made by the Central Governmant for the
maintenante of cost records under Section 289(1) (d) of the Companics
Act, 1956 in respect of peneration of power and are uf the opinion that
prima facie the prescribed acrounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or
complede.

(viii} Aceording to the information and explanations given tn us in respect of
statutory ducs:

{a} The Company has gencraily been regular in depositing undisputed
dues, ineluding provident fund, inenme-tax, sales tax, service
tax and nther matcrial statutory Jdues applicable to it with the
appropriate authoerities. There were no undisputed amounts
payablc in respect of these dues as at Mareh 31, 2011 fur a perind of
morc than six months frony the dale they hecame payabie,

) Accnrding to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the Company examined by us, there are no igputed
dues in respect of sales tax, weolib Lax, service tax, eustoms duty,
excise duty and cess, which have not been deposited. The details of
disputed dues of Incnme Tax as at March 31, 2011 are as follows:

{Rupees in lacs)
Periend
s which

Nature of the Statute  Nawure of dues A mscrant”

Forum where pending
K. in lacs)

amount relate

Income Tax Act Income Tax -Appellane Avthority 13.57 200704

upte Comnussioner’s
lewid

*Amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty wherever
indicated in the order.

{ix} As the Cnmpany has been registered for a period of less than ive vears,
paragraphs 4 (x) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) Innur opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has not defaubtcd in the repayment of dues to banks
and debenture bolders. The Company has not taken any loans from
financial institutions during the vear.

{xi} In our upinion, the Company has nottanwnd adeguate records where
it has granted foans and advances on the hasis of secority by way of

3

Pi¢

{xii) Based on nur examnination of the records and evaluations of the related
internal contrals, the Campany has maintained proper records of the
transactions and contracts in respect of its dealing in shares securities,
debentures and other investmeots and timely entries have been made
therein. The aforesaid securitics Pave been held by the Cnmpany in its
own name.

pledge of shares, debentures and nther securities.

{xilij According to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has nnt given any guarantees during the year for loans taken
by others from banks or financial institutions.

{xiv} In nur npinion and according tn the information and explanations given
to us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they
wore obtained, other than temporary deployment pending appilication.

{xv} In our ppinivn and according to the information and explanations given
te s and on an overali examination of the Balance Sheet, we report that
funds raised gn short-term basis have not been used during the year for
long- term investment.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given tous, the Company
has not made preferential allotment of shares during the year,

fuvit)Aceording to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year covered by nur audit report, the Company had issued 900
debentutes for Series 3 of face value of Rs.1,000,000 per debenture.
Subsequent to year end the Company has created security in respect of
the debentures issued under Series 3.

{uviliy The Company has raised money by way of initial public offering of
equity shares during the year. The Management has disclosed the end
use of money raised by public issue in note 16 of schedule 19 and we
have verified the same.

{xix) To the best of our knowledge and according te the information and
explanatinns given to us, nu fraud hy the Company and ne fraud on the
Cornpany has been noticed or reported during the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants
(Registration Ne. 015125N)

Jaideep Bhargava

Date @ 25th May, 2011
Mace : Gurgaon

Partner

{Membership No. (90295)




SOURCES OF ruNDS
Shurebiollers! Tunds
Share capilal
Emplovee stace aplis out-Landing
Reserves and surpluk
Eoan funds
Seeured loan ;
Prelerered tax tairility irel)

(eler pte 2o schogicle 14

APPLICATION OFFUNTIS
Fined dmeels :
Coree bk

Poma, Depnec it

Add: Capital work b pragress

Investments

Loan financing
Currenl assels, toans and sdvances
Sundre el
Castimnd Bank Lalapeoes
DN current aeset

T and audvacae
Less: Cutrent Habilivs and pravisions

Currenl bl

Trovcisie-
Not Current awsets

Natles b avcounts

Prses e b o faed

Yor Deloitte Hasking & Selly

Chartered Acoountap

Y

Jardvep Hinergava
Partner

lave s Corpaan

Thate 23th »ay, I

PTC India Financial Services Limited
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2011

{Rupees in lavcs)

"__.;\ﬁ at As at
Sch le

o chedule o 31002000 31.03.2010
1 of, 208,33 43,458 3%
2 4020 123 4
3 45,514.78 20,011.43
4 50,987 40 LG
498 72 43751
15925555 95,111.33

5
AA0E RN 3530670
552 AL
201621 34900
- Q.edy
3620 350061
6 1636514 40,670.40
7 H7 53077 26,6201
B 48.26 .11
9 4K, 347 96 23,1758
10 A1tL1H 47534
11 4,149.65 115387
52,985.77 25,106 o)

12
10,437.21 FERSLG
20312 s
10,640.33 793 R
4231544 24714 22
159,255.55 95,111.33

¥

The schedules referred to abwe fonm s inkegral part of $ee Balanee Sheel

For and on behalf of the Board of Pirectors

T Thakur Ashok Haldia
Chairaan and Managing Lirector and Chicf
Director Financial Officer
IEN: 024322 MM DOSIESSS

Flace : New Dethi

Visha! Goyal
Dlare o 25th May, 2011

Campany Secretary
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PTC India Financial Setvices Limited
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3172011

INCOME

Incorme from investments
[nterest income

Fee based income

Income from sale of power

Oither inconwe

EXPENDITURE

Personnel expenses
Administralion and other expenses
Interest and other charges
Depreciation / Amortisation

Provision for contingencics

Profit before tax
Less : Tax expense

- Current tax

- Deferred tax charge (Refer note 9 of schedule 19)

Profit after tax
Balance as per last balance sheet
Less : Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance carried to balance sheet

Basic earnings per share (Ks.)

Diluted earnings per share (Rs.}
{Refer note 8 of schedule 19)

Notes to accounts

In termis nf our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis

Chartered Accountants

Jaideep Bhargava
Partoer

Place : Guargaan
Date - 25th May, 2011

Schedule

13
14

15

16
17
18

19

{Rupees in lacs)
Yearended - Year ended
31032011 31.03.2010
148057 2,128.06
735210 135737
0251 - - 4817
3360 - om
51645 139570
10,885.23 5.318.95
- 184,01 256.90
563.54 256.90
4,271.69 1,160.44
545.12 470
177.74 -
5,742.10 1,678.94
$5,143.13 3,670.01
1,031.10 651.00
409.30 47377
3,702.73 2,545.24
2,708.30 672.64
{741.00) (509.50)
5,670.11 2,708.38
0.05 0.59
0.85 0.56

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of the profit and loss account

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

T. M. Thakur

Chairman and Managing

Director
DIN: 00024322

PPlace : New Delhi
Date : 25th May, 2011

Ashok Haldia
Director and Chief
Finaneial QOfficer

DIN: (0B18489

Vishal Goyal
Company Secretary



PTC India Financial, Services [imifed
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR.ENDED:-MARGH 3172081

(Rupees in Jacs)
Year Ended Year Ended
. B 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
{AY CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
['rufit belorgdtax 514313 3,670
Adjustmenkion I
Dhepsreciation Amortisation 545.12 4.70
Promvisivn o coningeneies 177.74 -
Emprloncee sfock options (77.70) 133,98
| v o waleful Fraed assoks 0.36 -
Profis £ fosf) on sale of non trade carrent investments (net]) - {0.60)
Drividend Inkome an iovesbment ather tan in proaver project ((!mpaﬂiCS (1?{]43) (46414}
Trleresd on fxed depoasits (51407 - . (1,393.68)
Trtarreat uthers {005 (0.02)
ileress and other charges 4,271.6 1,160.44
Qperating profit before working capital ehanges 9,375.76 3,000,449
{2,657.85) (F09.22
146.22 (45,041]
Tarann Fanangingg (40,938 67) 24,620.111
Tnvestinentg in power peoject cosipacies {Dek (5,641.65} &20,6&9.1’!]
Cash genedated from operations (39,716.19) (42,95312;
Threvt basey paid {1,340.69) {1,193.7%
Net vash generated from operating activities (41,056 88} (44,146,913
(B CASIFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fied assets {55.15) [3,505.79;
Trrswrevid = flomm sale of fixed asoets 0,06 (B
Vrefin # loist on sale of non trade curreat investroents (net} - 0.60
Lrividemnd Brcome on investment other than in power project companies 17048 6414
Inturesl ergkixed depasits 717858 1,125867
Lferest - ofhers 0.03 0.0
Mot cash ised in investing activities B§33.32 {14911 .R
1Ch CAST] FLEW FROM FINAMNCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from jssue of fresh equity shares {including share premium) 3527032 -
Reverved ersuant ta sale of equity shares of Macquanie India Holdings Ltd 8,077.60
Eguity shagres application meney refundable 139.28 -
Juraze expugnses paid {205.98) -
Frovecds from laog term borrowings 28,367.36 26,60 150
Provesds fipayments) from/to short term borrowings (2,460.00) 2,460.00
Lt est agd other charpes {4,064.84) (44311}
6512374, | 28,6364
Met incregsefidecrease) in eash and eash equivalents 24,500.18 (17421815
Opening fash and cash equivatents 23,447.38 40,B659 15
Cluwing dish and cash eguivalents 4834756 PR
Nutes:
1 Closing gash and cash equivalents comprise - #
[RIRATITES [TRRTIN| - K|
Halarwe vith sebeduled banks in:
Currgnt acveunts:
Foaeived on ehall of Macquarie India Huoldngs Limited yving In eserow aecount. a,077.6l
il ained share applivation crey bving inescros decount 139.28
B B 3,274.02 FAMREN
Fingud dopisin accuants 36,856.66 o ladE
Tatal 48, 347.56 23,447 .34

1

A Refec dute 16 of Schedule 19

Ui alye v

Uinsprargs A nanting Sandords} Roles, 206,

T bernn e caf persart adtacloed

For Deloitte Hashins & Sells
Chartered Accoundanls

Jaideep Bhorgava T. N. Thakur
Partner Chairman and Managing
Director
L3 D0024322
Ilace : Gurgaon Flace : New Delhi
[ate : 23th Mayv [2011 Date: 25th May, 2011

3%

Lo stalement has bee propaned under the iodirect method set out in AS-3 natified under

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ashok Haldia
Director and Thief
Financial Hficer

DIN: 00815459

Vishal Goyal
Campany Scoretary
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_ . PTC India Finangial Services Limited
SCHEDULES 1 TO 19 ANN?EXED':TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS

(Rupees in lacs)

As at As at
- ! 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
SCHEDULE - 1 SHARE CAPITAL L N
AUTHORISED A ’
1000,000,000 (previous year 600,000,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each : 100,000.00 LU0 40
I$SUED o i _
562,083,335 (previous year 434,563,335) equity shares of RS, 10 éach s _ 56,208,323 43,458.33
SUB5CRIBED AND PAID UP .
562,082,335 (previous year 434,563,335} equity shares of Rs. 10 earh 56,208,323 43,45833
fully paid up ) b
' ' 56,208.33 43,458.33
Of the above subscribed and paid up capital: -
337,250,001 (previous year 337,250,001) equity shares of Rs. 10 each
represenﬁng'ﬁo% (previous year 77.60%) are held by PTC India
Limited, the holding company and its nominees o
SCHEDULE - 2 EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION OUTSTANDING
Stock optiuns outstanding 8830 53769
Less; Deferred employee compensation expense {42.04) (413.73)
. 4626 19
SCHEDULE - 3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Securitiea premium
Balance brought forward 16,622.35 16,623 95
Add; Amount received pursuant to issue of equity shares 2252032
Less : Utilisation for share issue expenses (net of taxes) {719.70}
{Refer note 16 of schedule 19
Closing Balance ' 38,42357 16,622 .95
Statutory reserve
[in terms of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India, 1934]
Balance brought forward : 680.10 17000
Add: Additions during the year 741.00 1,421.10 509 .50 680.10
Profit and loss account 5,670.11 2,708.38
45,514.78 20,011.43
SCHEDULE - 4 LOAN FUNDS
Secured
Debentures (refer note (i) below) 29,000.00 20,000 00
Term loans from banks (refer note (i) below) 2377880 262010
5Short Term Loan from banks (refer note (iii) below) - 2,460.00
Long Term Infrastructure bond ( refer note{iv) below) 4,208.00 -
Note

i) 1,000 (previous year 1,000) privately placed 10.60% secured redeemable non convertible detwntarss of Ko, LKL cack (Series 1) allotted on Uteler 120N redeerssbic al par in three cyqual
annual installments commencing from September 30, 2012, 1,000 {previous vear 1000 privately placed 9.35% seured redeeniable non convertible detsastares of Ko OX000 eackh {eries 2}
allotied on February 3, 2010 redeemable as par entirely on February 2 242 900 ipreviens voar Mal] pravately placed Do 300 socred el eeieaisie o converibile sierentures af Ks 1000000
each [Series 3} allotied om January 27, 2011 redeemable at par in six eqqual antual installments cominenciasg fram lanuare 36, 00K Series 1, Sories 2 a1id S
of immavable building and first charge by way of hy pothecarion of i reeercsbles of the luap asats createsd by fhe proveed oo reipective delensuees, 3

been secured by pari passu eharge by way of hyputhecatian of the revervable of Toan assets cTeated by thu Uennpaane ont of 1t it suiroes whig

Compang to the eatent of 125% of debentures

e senlurend B way v mor gag:
e Land Series 3 have also
hoare vt harged s aoe uther lender of e

(i} The term loans from banks are secured by fest pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the cerrent assets inecbuding took Jolits, investments amd wthor o = Sther Ham ansels createt
by line nf credit of other finandial institutions / banks). Additivnally, the L are backed by an agreviment st assicnment of the Progst dssets I ed tree poscasds oty fans, iy Lavoe of
respective landers. Amount_l:@ayab_k_- within one year 1a.45.52 lacs (previows vear - K=, 3123 Lacs

.y T M .“'\ N . - . .
{isi) The short term (oan from Banks dre setufed by pledge of fived depumits witio the converned bani  Amount pavalihe withng s vear Lis Malygesions.

*(iv) 84,172 |previnus year Nify privately plined B25% / 5.3 securcd cedeentable non convernibe I e mh e rastronciars. buoids of e 50K el e Ty ailoted o st h
at paran five o ten years commenciag from March 30, 236,

enal

Wt e D ke e

A, 2 redermable

Seres 1 are to be secured by way of first charge n il reveryabiles of she assets created from e Frowemds o] il raadru tum

ponfen b red feceiabbes of the Campany
to provide 100% secunty coverage
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PTC INDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SCHEDULE - 6 INVESTMENTS

As at 31.03.2011

As at 31.03. 2010

{(Based on last traded price available as at year end)

Face Value Q“?N“:’:J; (Rupf:sl in Q“FS::’; (Rupf:sl in
lacs) ; lags}
Long term investment (at cost)
(i} Trade - Unquoted (at cost)
{Refer note 10 of schedule 19)
Tn Associates - Equity shares, fully paid up )
Ind-Barath Energy (Utkal) Limited 10,00 105,000,000 10,500.00 105,000,000 10,500.00
Ind-Barath PowerGencom Limited 10.00 55,630,000 5,563.00 55,630,000 5,563.00
Indian Energy Exchange Limited 10.00 5,766,026 576.60 6,939,190 693.92
PTC Bermaco Green Energy Systems Limited 10.00 1.374,646 137 46 843,684 84.37
RS India Wind Energy Limited 10.06¢ 61,121,415 611214 57,311,415 573114
Varam Bio Energy Private Limited 10.00 4,390,000 439.00 4,390,000 439.00
In Equity shares, fully paid up
East Coast Energy Private Lunjted 10.00 125,000,000 12.500.00 96,511,403 9.651.14
Meenakshi Energy and Infrastructure Holding F Limited 1000 1 # -
(# Rs.10)
Meenakshi Energy Private Limited 10.00 100,341,081 10,0M.11 43,550,000 4,355.00
{cease to be an associate w.e.f March 29, 2011)
Debentures, fully paid up
Optionally convertible debentures in Meenakshi Encrgy
and Infrastructure Holding Private Limited 10000,000.00 M 3.400.00
Optionally convertible debentures in Varam Bio Energy
Private Limited 500,000.00 90 450.00 40 20000
{ii) Non trade - Quated
Equity shares, fully paid up
Container Covporation of India Limited 10.00 1,040 10.27 1,040 10.27
Power Grid Corporation of India Limited 10.00 51,839 4256 81,839 42.56
Total 46,365.14 40,670.40
Aggregate cost of quoted investments 52.83 5283
Aggregate cost of unguoted investments 46,312.31 40,617.57
Total 46,365.14 40,670.40
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 95.87 101.40



THE FOLLOWVING

Long term tnvestmends {11ade - Unguoted)

Equity Shares:

Tochian Ererpre fan

Tl Bemeaeo e |

PTC INDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

INVESTMENT WERE PURCIIASED AND REDEEMED DURING THE YEAR

{Rupees in lacs)

MR I Wil Fraergy 1 nriled
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1.021.299

Face Value Purchased* Redeemed/ sold
{Rupees per Quantity Value Quantity Value
share)
g Linslied 100 - - 1,173,164 117.32
ety Sl ms Bt 10.00 530,962 53.09 - -
1n.a0 3A810,000 g1.00 - -
ate L omited 1EL0R 28,458,597 2,848 86 - -
l frasteucture Tolding I Linsited T00.00 t # - -
Fosle Linmiled .00 56,791,181 567911 - -
piv elwertures a0 Meeneksln Freres o PEIN 0L GH - 34 3.400.00
S RIBTHRITR
corverl e deletures in Varams Bie Energy [rivate BRI an 250.00 - -
[Moendrade - Ungunted)
ager-EL=Fulio Moo T 367530 g AH,200,477 6,824 99 68,203,477 6,8524.94
00 19,967,162 2,000.61 19,967,182 200061
cer=11-13000-Tolin So 1M 36071388 100 17047,732 1,705.14 17,047,732 1,705.18
pov Advantage Super institatonal- DUl N 10.00 WEITL YR 1,286.84 10,371,928 1,286.86
Fromnom Flan- LI - Folio SNo, 3104085 1EG0 27,405 88y 3360404 27,455,889 3360104
Do lolio Ne S1URNRS 1 10.00 80,210,084 AR 0,210,084 5,036.82
DI Fodio N LA 30nan 100 20,0090, 284 201005 23,090,230 2.016.05
f¢ - Falin No 890862 /55 10.00 13,664,445 1,915.46 15,664,445 1,915 46
TNA - INSTITUTIONNAL-DDR-1a 10 m0 1006 Tit (3 1,011.92 161,083 1611492
DRSS SHORT  TERST i1 FUND O 13,355,597 XY b 13,355,547 133711
HE
FESARD FUNDOINSTHLTION A PR ELRILY B35k, 744 HI737 K,356,789 83717
vl nd S DDR - Folio Neo 3000 13359 10,00 2,403,758 24057 2,403,758 24057
SUILHE - Toslaes PN, 300017335400 100 29 9%R GRG 299873 29,955,186 299823
TP el N danse LU TAEE den Rl ] 218,406 I51ES
YN Talin Ne, Bisal /55 L AR, 735 1,949 10 19,334,725 1,949 10
e e TR - Yohe Moo §1nddinne T10.EH) 13,4975 000 ,389.76 13,473,056 2,389 1¢
vo bundd THIL - Falin ™ Aal 7 160,00 12001 815 130202 13.061,845 1,305.42
Dl Na BXIAIRSLT 10000 2550 an2n? 5,125,939 YRR
I Preacary Plan Taale Thondenas ian 1400 12,887,741 1.5970.20 12 687,741 1,970,
ST TN Falio N wea T 1100001 1,121,200 1230
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PTC INDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SCHEDULES 7TO 12

Asat Asat
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
: {Rupees in lacs) (Rupees in lacs)
SCHEDULE - 7 LDAN FINANCING
{Considered good unless otherwise stated) e
Secured Lo S
Loans 67,558.77 26,620,10
67,558.77 _26,630.10
SCHEDULE - 8 SUNDRY DEQTORS .
Unsecured considered goad L )
Less than six months 4826 0.1
48.26 0.11
SCHEDULE - 9 CASH AND QANK QALANCES
Cash and bank balanice #
Chegues an hand o.m
Balance with scheduled banks in :
Current accounts:
- Received on behalf of Macquarie [ndia Holdings Lirnited lying 8,077.60 -
in escrow account T
- Unclaimed share application money lying in escrow account 139.28 -
- Others 3,274,002 221.02
Fixed deposit accounts* 36,856,66 2322635
45,347, 56 2344738
# Refer note 16 of schedule 19
* Includes Rs. 235.05 lacs {previous year Rs. Nil ) deposit as margin money against bank guarantee
SCHEDULE - 10 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{Considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest acerued but not due on
- Fixed deposits 83.73 28754
- Loans 32354 18432
- Debentures 283 338
410.10 475.24
SCHEDULE - 11 LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Considered good unless otherwise stated)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind
or for value to be received:
Secured {considered good) 272380 -
Unsecured (considered good) 194.29 506.72
Advanre against investment - 53.09
Baiance with central excise on current accounts .19 46.08
Advance income tax [net of provision for inconte
tax Rs 1687.71 lacs (previous year Rs 656.61 lacs)] 886.40 576.81
Advance fringe benefit tax [net of provision for fringe
benefit tax Rs.1.49 lacs{previous year Rs 1.49 lacs)| 117 1.17
4,145.85 1,183 87
SCHEDULE - 12 CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry creditors
Total vutstanding dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises (refer note 11 of schedule 19) 1,175.89 58,83
Other liabilities 119.01 10.63
Interest accrued but not due on loan funds 92543 71859
Lquity shares appliration money refundabie 135.28 -
Payable to Macyuarie India Holdings Limited 8,077.60
(Refer note 16 of Scheduie 19)
10,437.21 788.05
PRDVISIONS
Provisien lor gratuity 6,27 057
Iravision for leave encashment 1511 376
Contingent provision against standard assets 177.74 -
SED %~ 20302 4.33
oy ;




Year ended
31.03.2010
{Rupees inlacs)

PTC INDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
SCHEDULES 13 TO 18
Year ended
31.03.2011
{Rupees in lacs)
SCHEDULE - 13 INCAOME FROM INVESTMENTS
Profit o saie of lung tapm Lrade investments
- Eyuity shares 1,236.63
TPrafit on sale of mon tdde current investrents
- Mutual funds -
Dividend income
- (1 non trade leny tehin investment 1.39
- O pen trade currend investment 169.0% 170.48
Trterest om dobaenlures 73.46
[tax deducted at ~ourgs Be 735 lacs
{previows ven Bs 1707 lacs]]
: 1,480.57
SCHEDULT - 14 INTEREST INCOME
Interest en .
-Toan 735210
[tax deducted at sourge Ks. 73523 lacs
{previous year s, 15005 lacs)]
735210
SCHENRULE - 15 OTHER INCOME
Interest on fixed depgsits 514.07
[tax deducted at soupee Rs.57.13 lacs
iprevious year Rs 18} 38 lacs }
Interest-othiwrs 0.03
Eavess provisiom wrttten oack 235
516.45
SCHFDULE - 16 FERSONNEL EXPENSES
Salaries ord other alewances 215.38
Contrlution o provident and other funds 11.05
Emplover stock optipns cutstanding (77.709
Stafi woellore 35.28
184.01
* D to forfeiture; furrender of Emplovee Stock Options Qutstanding during the year
[Refer et 4 nf Tugdule 19}
SCHEDULE - 17 ADMINISTRATIVE AN
{ITHER EXPENSTS
Lagal mnd professiopa’ 124 87
Fumd raising expenges 32452
Praren and tiases 278
[t e s 336
bent 2447
Traveliing arud conyevarne 30.70
ConnmUne b ox peises 6.5%
LIS TCS R IO R T i 19.02
Thonation -
Threcters siting fogs 7.80
Rupairs amd aintgnance: - others 6.45
Btk and preeriodidals .60
Tama o fuTeie CLATen oy Aransaction -
Do ot sale af Fiegd assets 0.36
Slisceihaneaa- vapgnses 11y
56351
SCHEDULE - 18 INTEREST AND OTHTR CHARGES /fa_”
/? O NG,
Lntereat on b nntpres J 216588
Tterest en loans T iaed peoedi
SRupree term wgass T scheduled Banks 21085.50
infrastructire bondy 973
Frmaneial cinarges 658
4,271.69

113
463.01

0.60

464.14

1,663.32

2,128.06

1,357.37
1,357.37
1,393 .88

0.02
180

. 1395,70°

114.54
554
113.98
22 54

9011
106,62
- 51
1217
17.51
754
1.7
300
240
415
072
am

n20

X

OB
4ih0

Ak
11604

e e
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SCHEDULE - 19 N AATHTR F A
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NOTES TD ACCQUNTS ., oo p

- s “ir{[ 1

1’ B Background "
PTC India Financial Services Limited ("PFS") is & registered NBFC
with Reserve Bank of India and has been awarded the Infrastructure
Finarce Company. (IFC) stituis by RBL PFS is set up with an objective
to provide total financing solutions to the energy value chain which
includes investing in equity or extending debt to power projects in
generation, transmission, distribution, fuel resources and fuel related
infrastricture,

2. Significant ddcoun¥ing policies

[T

(i Basis of acco unl-ing

These financial statements have been prepared to comply in afl
matetial aspects with all the applicable accounting principles in
India, the applicable accounting standards notified under seetion
211(3C) of the Companies Act, 1956, the relevant provisiuns of
the Companies *Act, 1956 and the Non- -Banking Financial {Non-
Deposit Accepling ar Holding) Companies Prudential Norms
(Reserve Bank) Qirections, 2007,

{{] Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management
of the Company to make estimates and asswmnptions that affect
the reported balances of assets and liabilities, revenues and
expenses and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities. The
management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the
financial staterments are prudent and reasonable. Future results
could differ-from these estimates. Any revision to accounting
estimates is récognized prospectwe]y in the current and future
perods.

(iii) Fixed assets including intangible assets and depreciation

Fixed assets including intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation/amortisation. Cost of acquisition
comprises purcttase price, duties, levies and any direetly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intennded use,

Depreciation on fixed assets (other than intangible assels) is
charged on a pro-rata basis at the written down value rates
prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, Asscts
costing upto Rs. 5000 are fully depreciated in the year of
purchase,

intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a
straight line method over a period of 5 yrars or less depending nn
the estimated useful life of the assets.

{iv}) Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held
for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All
other investments are classified as long-term investments, Long
Term Investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminution

(if any) is made te recognize a decline other than temporary in th
value of investment. /" —

N

Current Investments are carried at the lower of cost ]
value.

{v) Revenue recognition

a)  Interest and other dues are accounted on accrual basis.

T

Lo PTGINDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Cili el ity bt o

b)  Dividend is accnunted when the right (o receive is
established,

¢} Fee based incnmes are recngnised when reasonabie right
of recovery is established and the revenue can be rebiabiv
measured.
d}  Revenue from Pnwer Supply is accounted on accrual basis.
(vi} Employce stock options

The Company calculates the employee stock compensation
expense based nn Lhe intrinsic value method wherein the excess
of intrinsic price of underlying equity shares as on the Jdate of
the grant of optiuns uver the exercise price of the options given
te empiovees under the Empluyee Stock Optinn Scheme of the
Cumpany, is recognized as deferred stock compensation expowse
and is amnrtized ever the vesting periad nf npticns.

(vil} Employee benefits

Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme acd the

cantributions are charged to the profit and loss account of the

vear when the contributinns to the government funds are due,

Gratuity liability and long term employec benefits are pravided
on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial
year as per projected unit credit method.

Gains and losses arising out of actuarial valuations are recognizd
immediately in the profit and loss account as income or expense.

Liability for leave encashment snd gratuity in respect of
employees on deputation with the company are accounted lor
on the basis of terms and conditions of the deputation agreement
with the holding company.

{viiij Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange
rates prevalent at the time of transaction. Differences nn
settlement of such transactions are recognized in the profit and
loss account. Al monetary items denominated in fureign currency
at the balance sheet date are translated at the vear end rates and
resultant exchange differences are recognized in profit and loss
agcount.

(ix) Earnings per share (EPS)

The earnings considered in asceraining the Companv's EPS
cnmprises the net profit after tax {and includes the post tax effect
of any extra ordinary items) attributable to equity shareholders,
The number of shares used in computing Basic EPS is the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the vear.
The difuled LIS s caleulated on the tame basis as basic EPS, after
adjusting for the effect of polential dilutive equity shares.

[x}  Taxation

Provision for current taxation is ascerlaired an the basis of
assessable profits computed in accordance with the provisions of
the fncome Tax Ace, 1961,

Dewrred Tax s recognized, subject to the consideration o
prudence, on timing Jdifferences, being the difference between
tasable income and accounting incame that originate inune period
/ and are capable nf reversal in one or more subsequent periods,
- Deferred tax assets are recognized on unabsorbed depreviation

i land carried forward of losses based on virtual certainty that
& /suﬂm :nt future taaable income will be available against which
such deferred tax as<et can be realized.



Provisions gnd contingencies

Provisions pre recognized when the Company has a present
obligatiun & a resutt of past events, for which it is prohable that
an nutflow pf resources will be required tn settie the obdigation,
aind o reliable estimate of the answount can e muade. Provisions
required topettle are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where
necestary th reflect the current best esthimates of the obltpation,
A disclosuge for a contingent Hability s made when there b oa
possible obdigation or a present obligation that prebably will nat
require an putflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of
obligation gannot be made,

3. Contingent tiabiities in respect of:

(Mupees m laes)

Year ended Year ended

Options granted

during the year

ended March 31,
ana

Growth Options  Cirowth

Optians granted during the
vear ended March 31, 200

Fourde

Ot LI
Optrene
I'rice Per Option (Rs.) | le "
Votatility 29.64% FAB 73t
Risk Free Rate of 7.27% FRL VS T,
Interest
Option Life (years) 5 5 B
Fair Value Per Opticn 1053 1136 1270

There is no history of dividend declaration by the Company, hence e
dividend yietd has been assutied as Nil.

31.01.2011 31.03.2010
Estimated amount of contracts T Effect of fair valuativn on Financial Pesition
remaining to be exefuted nn capitat ) o
acconnt and not prowided fur . 24 L Impact on Profitability
Income tax a7

4. Employee Stockd Oplion

The Conypany igstituted the Employee Stock Optiun Flaa - 1500 200
to grant equity pased incentives Lo afl its cligible emplovees. During
the year ended March 31, 2009, the first tranche of ESOP ws apprived
by the sharsholfers un October 27, 2008 and the Company granted
two types of opfions Le. Growth options granted t the emplovees and
exercisable at ingrinsic value as on the date uf grant as centified by an
independent vajuer and Founder Member Optiuns exervisatie at face
value of shares(ie. Ks. 10 pur share, representing une share for cach
eption upon exgroise. Further, during the year ended March 31, 2000,
second tranche |of FSOP 2008 svas appruved by the sharehotders oo
Cctober 23, 2008 and provided for grant of 10,075,000 srovth options
exercisable at a price of Rs. 16 per share, representing une share for each
option upun exgretse. The maximum tenure of these options granted is
4 years from the respective date of grant,

The fair value af each stock option granted under ESOP 2008 as un the
date of grant hps been computed using Black-Scholes Option {ricing
Model without|inclusion of Dividend Yield and the model eputs are

given as under

Movement in
Stuck Oplions

Outstanding of the

bepinninge of the

vear

Year ended Year ended

(Bupees in lacs

Particulars Year ended  Year endond
31.03.2011 ESRIRRUIIEY
Profit as reported fur the yvear 370273 5 R
Add: Employee stock compensation {77 .70} TLh s
under intrinsie value method
Less: Employee stock compensatinn (507.24) n2lel
under fair value method
I'ro forma profit 4132.27 234t
2. Impaet on Basic/ diluted EPS
Particular Year ended Year ended
31.03.2011 I RIERIIY
- As reporied {in Rupees)
Basic N85 (.5u
Dilutive 085 h.59
- As pro furma (in Rupees)
Basic 0.95 n47
Dilutive 0.94 047

{A) Gratuity

5. Disclosures required as per AS - 15 {Revised) " Employvec Beactin”

Add: Crante:d
during the yiear

|Lesa: Tarfeit

surrender du
the vear

Options
vratstarding s at
the eond af the vear

VA A B0

1,447,100 T, 0

RN

ORI

’ /\‘bmue of plan assets
75 7k
fa

31.03.2011 31.03.2010 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obli gation:

(in Nos.} fin Nos.) . .
(Rupees b b
Growth Feunder Corowth Founder Year ended  Year omibeld
Oplinns Member Options SMember 33.03.2011 3900 T
Opticos Options Opening delined benefit obligation 0.57 EES
95,500 1,200 REREEON 1 2anitid Current service cost 236 A
Bvterest cost (AN N
Actuarial losses [ {pains) 330 i1,
i JOLOFE A Closing d.ufined beuefit_l.)b!igation 027 . N

Reconcilialion of present value of defined benefit obligation and {air

pRupees s

]_21\‘}’&] W ',_. Year ended ‘n'.mr l:nd.-u_
¥ L 31012011 3|03
NS //_{C']t’_!sin;.: defined benefit abligation 627
Pt I : ot
- e LClosing fair value of plan assets -
53
—7 Net asset/ (liability) recopnized in (.27 U

Lalanee sheed




Expense recognized in profit and loss aeeount

(Rupees in lacs)

have any geographic segments. Assuch, there are no separate reporiabile
segments as per Accounting Standard 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006.

(8)

)

3}

Year ended  Yearended
31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Current service cost 235 0.42
Interest cost 0.04 0.04
Net actuarial losses / {gains) 330 {0.42)
Net expense 5.70 0.04

leave eneashment
Changes in the present valie of the defined benefit obligation:

{Ropees in facs)

Yearended  Year ended

31.03.2011 3.03.2010

Opening defined benefit obligation 378 176
Current serviee cost 737 247
Interest cost 0.30 013
Actuarial losses / (gains) 778 {1.55)
Closing defined benefit obligation 19.11 376

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair
value of plan assets

{Rupces in lacs)

Year ended  Year ended

31.03.2011 31.03.2010

Clasing defined benefit obligation 9.1 '3.76
Closing fair value of plan assets - -
Net asset/ (liability} recognized in (1%.11) (3.76)

balance sheet

Expense recognized in profit and lass account

7. Related party disclosures
(2}

List of refated parties and relationships

Related parties where control exists or with whom transaetions
have taken place during the year are giveri below:

Holding company
Associate eompanies

i FTC India Limited

: Ind-Barath Energy (Utkal) Limited
: Ind-Barath PowerGencom Limited
: Indian Energy Exchange Limited |
: Meenakshi Energy Private Limited

{cease to be an associate w.e.f, March

29, 2011)

:'TC Bermaco Green Energy Syé&ms Lid-

: RS India Wind Energy Limited
: Varam Bio Energy Private Limited
ey management :Mr. Ashok Haldia '

personnel

(b) Details of related party transactions in the ordinary course.of the

business:

(&

Transaetions with holding eompany

Nature of transactions Yeac ended Year ended

' ’ 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Rent paid 2432 . 1212
Reimborsement of expenses * 201.38 97,22

* Inclodes Rs. 45.10 lacs {previous year Rs. 28.94 lacs) towards N

remonerabion of Director,

(i)

Transactions with key manage ment personnet .

in {ac;)

{Rupees in lacs) (Rupees
Year ended  Year ended Nature of transactions Year ended  Yearended
31.03.2011 31.03.2010 31,03.2011 31.03.2010
Current service cost 7.2 242 Reimbursement of expenses 1.54 105
[nterest 5'05"" . ) 030 013 Remuneration paid** 45,10 - 391
Net actuarial losses / (gains} 7.78 (0.55)
Net expense 1535 2.00 ** Also included under reimbursement of expenses to holding company as

The principal assumptions used in determining defined retirement
ubligations for the Company’s plans are shuwn below:

disclosed at (i) above.
(iil) Transaetions with associates

R int
{Ropees in lacs) (Rupees in lacs)
Yearended  Yeac ended Nature of fransactions Year ended Year ended
31.03.2011 31.03.2(10 31.03.2011 31.03.2610

Biscounting Rate 8.00% 7.50% Investment in equity share capital :

Future Salary Increase 5.50% 2.00% - Ind Barath Energy (Utkal) Limited . 10,500.00
The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation Meenakshi Enecgy Private Limited 5.679.11 2,855 00
take inte account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant PIC Bermaco Green Energy Systems 53.00 35728
factors on lung term basis. Limited i
In respect of the defined cyntribution plans, the Company has - Varam Fio Energy I’rivah_a Llimited 27.81
recognized the following amounts in the profit and loss account: - RS India Wind Energy Limited 381.00 -

B ) Advance against investment ;
(Rupees in lacs) ITC Bermaco Green Energy Systems 52.95
Yearended  Year ended Limited
3,03.2011 31.03.2010 Investment in debentures

limpt!o_vpr's contribution to .05 5.84 I50.00 200,00

provident fund
The Cempany’s main business is to pravide fimance for energy value
chain through investment and lending into such projects. All uther 11732

activities revolve around the main business. The Company does not




D¢

Mature of transact

[1.] ’ Year ended

10 each fin R

Year ended
31.03.2011 31032010
Frvestment Babancis vutstanding  at the
batonee wheet ddaty
liad Baratis Lnergy (dthaly Laouted 101500000 10,500 £K)
Cbned Barath Powerfepoom Limited bo63.00 5,563.00
- lvihan brergy Txehange Ghndted 576.60 693.92
Mirnakshi Erergy [nvate Limited 18,H34.11 4,.355.00
R Peramacn Gaeen Faergy Systems 13746 8437
bt d .
- RS bndsa Ward Frergy Bimited 611214 573114
- Vatan Bio Eneryy Ipvate Limited 433.00 439.00
Advance agatnst Invigtmient as on the
Balance <heet date
TI0 Bereaen (jl’u--.-n Energry Systems - 53.09
Timined :
Investment in debenpures as on the Balance
sheetl date
-Waramn Fao Frwerggy Brivate fimiked
4R0.00 200,00
B, Laraiogs per share
Yearended  Yearended
~ 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
Profit after las atiributable  to equily 3273 . 2,545.24
sharehobtders {(Rupedk in lacs) (a)
Winghted Average gumber of equity shares 435,980,595 434,583,335
nutstanding during fhe vear (Nas} {b)
Effect of potentiat dilutive equity shares on 1,566,487 -
Emplovee Stock Opfons nutstanding * (¢}
Welplwed average qumber of equity shares 437,547,082 434,583,335
i computimg Jdiluked earnings per share
Lk (il
Basi earnings per share of face value Rs. 10 0.85 0.59
cach (i Hupees)
Dilubed varnongs ok share of face value Rs. 0.85 059

1

* There were mo di
31,2010,

Y. Deferred tas

‘ative potential equity shares for the year ended March

The breabup oz defgred tax assets ¢ (Habilities) as at March 31, 201155 as

undser

tRupees in lacs)

Balance as ab Adjustousat Movernent Balance as at

L0320 during thw year 3lo032m
Dhedecred I\u.\ :l.--v_-' .;.'l-..r F\ i
RIRRINH Credidivigee
BRI T e PR (1201} 1.4t
MA.09 £70.94) 27713
14 - 679 823
5764 5764
Standard e
Less
- 40142 - 390.TH
.'\'\.‘I W g wabtibeea 37 51 MEMW ["m-wny\“l

4 Represts dufor

preaiet asonu |

e taw asaet recognised on expendilurc o
FesfoT muate V6 ?—:c]nw) b

10 The percentage holding and the investmierit inl associate companties s at
March 31, 2011 is given beiow:

Name of the

Country of Y% holding Face value A at As at
asaociate company  lncarporation Rupees March 31, March 31
per share 011 mo
{Rupees  (Rupers
in laca] in Lacz)
ind-Barath Energy ; )
{Utkal} Limited India 0.55% 0 1850000 185000
ind-Barath
PowerGencom India 2% 10 5563.00 5536300
Limited
indian Energy . » a1
fxchange Limited India A% . 1D 576.60 9391
PTC Berrmaco Green . .
Energy Systems Ltd. ndia 6% 18 13746 37
RS irwdia wind . .
a 7
Energy Limited india EYEY ] 611214 575114
Varam 8o Energy . o
Peivate Limited India 26% i} 43900 4395
Total 223820 2331147

11 Based on the information available with the Company, there are no
dues as at March 31, 1011 payable to enterprises covered under “Micra.
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006”. No interest
is paid / payable by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,

12 Totai number of ejectricity units generated and sold during the vear -

11,720,432 KWH (previous year: 3006 KWH).

13. Managetial remuneration;

{Rupees in lacs)

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2011 3i.03.20H0

Salary xnd allowances 38.02 276t
Porquisites 5.03 87
Contribuiion o provident funds 205 1.43
Total 45.10 3L

Note: The above figures do not include leave encashment and gratuity as itax
provided in the books or the basis of actuarial valuation for the Company ax
a whole and hence individual amount cannot be determined.

14. Auditors’ remuneration

(Rupecs 1o Lics)

Year ended

Year craded

31.03.2011 RN MERUAITE
Statutory audit 6.00 s
Audit/ Limited Review of intenim
financial statement 400 1.2
Tax audit 1.50 bl
Relating to Initial Public Offer (1F0) 34.65
Chher certificates 230 1.25
Total 48.45 C

15. Expenditure incurred in foreign currency

{Rupees o laos

Year ended Ycz:r-un-\-lc;i

3reiion FTAA Do

Fees for Exie mal Commercial Borowings 154.49 NI
Fees relating to [P0 678

Travciling 240 [

o

.87 o
214.50 142




—Jﬁs

{a) During the financial year, the Company

‘hasi completed Itailnitlal

CEE L LINY . (Rupees in lacs)
Public Offer (IPO) comprising of fresh issue of 127,500,000 equity slum Asevte slic — Amvonnt ourrtendin
{excluding an effer for sale of 29,200,000 eqiiity sharés by, m.‘ Loans 3nd Advances Including billa recelvabh e CLEenTE
India Holdings Limited, s shareholder of the Company) of face valye [Other thaa those included bn {8 below]:
of Rs.10 each for cash at a price of Rs,28 per share {including & ghare ) Secured 70,282.57
] fR h ti , &) | Unsecured ] 49429
premium of R. 18 per equity share) aggrega ng to Rs. 3‘?’{2!???3%!“:5 i {3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and othee sssets
"The share premium of Rs, 18 pec share, net of discount ofRe 1 for tounting towards AFC activities
investor, amounting to Rs.22,520.32 lacs on issue of fresh equlty sharee () Lesse apsets Includicg bease rentals under sundry debtors:
has been credited to share premium account. The share expenises E;)) ““‘“;:::’_
amounting to Rs. 719.7G lacs, after netting off tax nl'Rs 348091&‘3 h!\re . Opera :
been adjusted to share premium accourit.. . ...t Rt (ij ‘?"'_‘hhl"d":ﬁ:'ld"'” mqu’“”
. : . S ' ) Repossessed Asmety - -
(b} Detail of share issue expenses is as follows : | e disan (i) loars . “meme'
(Rupeesln laes) 0] Loans where ssscts have been repossessed
- i} Loar other than [a} above
Particulars Y;;t mdg: [ Break-ap of L t ta:
- Current Investments:
Laeal and Prufessiunal 54028 1 Quoted:
::J:ii;ur.-a' rs»rmu.neralion :;: 3 o BT (a)Bquil)' R A
CEulatney fees (A Y e mp P .
!fdvz-rhir-cmenl 48875 m Del and Bond .
Travelling 1684 ) Units of funds
Ottwr expenses 14827 " . A
;;\::_::ll{muverah]e from Macquarie india Hoiding Limited # {ﬁ;;] g{? Gov:l emu!ntl hEB=) _
- 2 Unquoted:
# Represents amount recoverable from Macquarie India Holdings Limited in i Shares: (a) Equity
proportion to the equity shares sold by Macquarie India Holdings Limited in C {6} Preference .
the IPC of the Compsny. © ... (W, . Debentures and Bonds -
(c) The TPO proceeds received on March 29 2011 have been utthzed as.. . ... ::2., --2:"“""'""’5 "m:;
under: ) Others (please cpecify) -
(Rupees In lacs} :..nn;'l‘:m tmemm-.
Particulars Year ended o ) Shares: {a) Equity 5283
$1.00.201] (b) Preference -
Share issue proceeds® 35,2732 [id) Debentures and Bonds
Less: i) Units of mutual funds
Issur retated expenses 20598 (v} Government Securities .
Repayment of Term Loans 2389.03 [+ Others (please specify) -
Closing batance of unutilized proceeds as at the yeae end 3267531 2 Unguoted:
Deetails nf unutilised procesds are given below: [iY) Shares: (a} Equity 45,862 31
- Balance i eurment acoounts . 117531 (%) Preference .
- Balanery in deposit accounts- N,500.00 (i Debentures and Bonds 45000
* Excludes equity share application money amounting to Rs, 139.28 [acs lying iy Unita of mutual funds
in eserow aceount payable to investors after allotment of equity shares by the {iv} Government Securities
Company and Rs. 8077.60 lacs payable to Macquarie India Holdings Limited ] Others (sdvance sgsinst equity share capital} -
pursuant to sale of 292,00,000 equity shares by Macquarie India Holdings Total 4636514
Limited in ihe TPO of the Company. (Rupees in lacs)
17. Previous period’s figures have been regrouped / recast wherever (5] Berrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3] 2bove:
considered necessary to conform to current period's classification. & Amount net of provisions
18, Schedules 1 to 19 and the statement of ad ditional informaHon fotm an Secured Unseeursd Total
integral part of the accounts. 1. Related Parties
Staternent of Additional information as required in terms of paragraph 13 &) Subsidiaries ) i
4 paragrap b} Companies in the same group - -
nf Non-banking Financia] (Nen-Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies {e) Other resated parties B R B
I'rudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007 2 Other than related parties 70,282 57 49429 70,770.86
(Rupecs in lacs) Total 0,282 57 49539 70,77586
Particulars Amwnl Amoant
Outstanding Overdue
Liabitities side: {Rupees in lacs}
11 isans and ‘d"““m availed by the non-banking ﬁn"‘f'—‘l (6} Invester group-wise clagsification of 811 investments {eurrent and long term} in
company inclusive of interest accrued thereen but not paid: shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted)
. e lurcs - - . Category Amuount net of provisions
(e) tnt Iuréu.ns::fl;::j 33.211&“3 . Secured Unsecured Totai
[ther than faliing wilkun the meaning of o 1. Related Pa'_-ﬂ‘_?s l
public deposits} . é;; ?o?:d‘anﬁin the
(1) Uelerred Credits ‘ pantes same
- group
e} Term Loans _ {e} Other related parties 45000 23320 7778
:.j]:l ir_\trrforp.u:alt’c loans and burrowing ) than related parties ) 22 3054 2758694
L4 -Amvmet cial ﬂm
t]  Other Loans (short berm bank loan) 15000 45,915.14 16365.14




(Rupeesinlacs)  L.Capital AdequacyRatio:riuryir -
{7)_Other information = srgrle virupelmﬁﬂr AS9 R HPHERE {Rupees in lacs)
Particulars R e oo et Amount 'Pmlhlhrs bl e As at
(il Gross Non-Pefforming Asscts R L 31 March 2011
[at Related parties - TI.EI‘I Capﬁa.l 101,723.11
i ([\LI‘]‘ P:I_')the;r t]; :n rf‘;lal‘ff PB!IUC.S e s oo Tier b Caplt.al - 1777
il sot Non-Perfgrming Assets W mlae e e et IR ITR LY TR —
{a) Related parties -« . - L . Tolaltap:ﬁ . -l"[L](:,;
(b Other thpn related parties ' : - Tatal REk elghbed Asae‘s 120,667,
fiiit Assets acquirgd in satisfaction of debt : - C&pitﬁLRﬂtwﬂ Al est L
- B T tal as Percentage uf'r tal Risk Assets (% 84,300
Disclosures pursuant tp Reserve Bank of India Notiﬁca!ion DNBS{PD) CC ier] Capt reeniag o ssets (%) .
No.145/03.02.01/ 2008-10 dated ]ulyl 2009 Tier 1l Capital as l"en:enta_gg g_f?otal Risk Assets (%) IREEN
TO!al Clpihl (%} 8«1.45_"#{\_
1 N

. Exposure 1o Real :Fslate sector, both direet and indirect

111

Muatuzity pattera Ff certain items of assets and liahilitics as at 31 Mareh, 2011

The Company dc)ta not have any direct or,indirect exposure to the real estate sector as at 31 March, 2011.

Asset Lizbility Management

(Rupwees i Tavs:
TR R

TFarticulars

Overs' '-

Upto 1 Overl Dver2 Overd- “Overl Over 3 Over Tutal
month  monthte2 monthsto3  monthsto months to year to years to 5 years
months months 6 months- :+1 year 3 years - 5 years
Liabilities ;
Borrowings fram - .
banks, 93.75 - 9375 "' 26702 3,146.55 442519 1375260 33,775 R
Market Borrowings - - - - . 10,000.00 6,666.67 3333353 13,208.60 33,208.60
Assets
Receivables under .
fimancing activits 110942 16.92 16.92 1.143.26 637455 13,777.14 10,396.41 34,724.15 H7.558.5T
Investimenl - - 4300 64.29 150.00 192.71 45,915.14 1,305 14
For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
T.N. Thakur Ashok Haldia

Dlace s Mew el
Trane 25U May, 2N

Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00024322

Dhirectar and Chief
Financial Offver
DTN (ISTRLRY

Vishal Goyal
Company Secretary




PTC INDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

PART IV
Balance Sheet Abstract and Company’s General Business Profile

Regintratisn Details
Registration Ne.

Balance Sheet Date

Month Year

Day

Capital Raised during the year (Amount in Rs, Thousands)

I |
I |

Position of Mobitisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Puhlic Issue

3,527,031.90

Bonus 1ssue
MIL

Tatal Liabilities
16,989,588

Sources of Funds

Paid-up Capital
5,620,833
Secured Loans
5,698,746

Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets
0,620
Loans
6,755,877
Deferred Tax (Nety
{49,872)
Accurmnulated Losses
NIL

|
|
I
J

I

Performance of the Company {Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turnowver

1088523 |

Profit/ Loss before Tax
| + 514313 |

Earning pir share in Rs,
0.85
Generic Names of three principal products/services of the Company (as per monetary terms)

IProduct Descripiiom

L Financial Services

T.N. Thakur
Chatrman and Managing; D
. S

Directar
DN (HH124322

Place: New Delhi

Vishal Goyal
Dates 25th Mav, 2011

Company Secretary

47

State Code

55

Right lssue
NIL
Private Macement
NIL

Total Assets
16,989,588

Reserves & Surplus
4,556,105
Unsecured Loans

Investments
4,636,514
Net Current Assets
4,231,544
Misc. Expenditure

Total Expenditure
574,210
Profit/ Loss after Tax
+370,273
Bividend Rate %

I
I

|
I
]

Ttem Code
{__ Not Applicable j

Ashok Haldia
Drector and Clyef
inancial Oilhicer
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PTC INDIA FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Repd. Office: 2nd Floor, NBUC Tower, 15 Bhikaji Cama Place, New Duelli- 110066

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Members of their proxies are requested to present this form for admission, duly signedin accordance
with their specimen signatures registered with the Company.

Name of Attending Person [ T

(IN BLOCK T.EI'TERS) o

Regd. Folio nol L _ ) . e j
No. of Shares held [_ N _ o o !
DPID no. | Chient 11D No. (

L e—— -

I, hereby recor | my presence al the 5% Annual General Meeting of the Conmpany being held on 28th
the day of September, 2011 at 11:30 AM at Dr Sarvepalli Radhakrishnan Auditorium at Kendriva
Vidyalava No.p, ATS. Colony (Delhi-Gurgaon Road), Dethi Cantt, New Delhi - 11001 ()

Please lick {¥)]in the box.
L L
Member Proxy
| )

Member's / Proxy's Signature

SAPRLeabt e er BT shaves o sl meede

49&
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PTC INDIA FINANGIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Regd. Office: 2nd Floor, NBCC Tower, 15 Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi- 110066

PROXY FORM
DPID | | ClientID [ ]
No. of Shares held | | Regd. Folio No.? | |
I/we | , /0 in the district of

, being a member/members of PTC India Financial Services Limited, hereby

appoint ' of as my/our proxy to vote for
me/us and on my/our behalf at the 5" Annual General Meeting of the company to be held on 28th
day of September, 2011 at 11:30 am on Dr. Sarvepalli Radhakrishnan Auditorium at Kendriya

Vidyalaya No.2 A.P.S. Colony (Delhi-Gurgaon Road), Delhi Cantt., New Delhi-110010 and any
adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2011.

(Signature)
(affix Revenue Stamp of appropriate value)

Note: - The proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Comnpany not less than 48 hours
before the time for holding the meeting.

*Applicable for holding shares in physical mode.




